BID NO: 24350

Page 1

January 4, 2011

OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

INVITATION TO BID FOR THE PURCHASE OF GOODS (FLEET SPECIFIC – REVERSE AUCTION)

عالا

BID NO.:

24350

FINAL BID February 3, 2011

TIME:

2:00 PM

CLOSE DATE:

DESCRIPTION:

Rollers

BUYER:

Kari Frev

PHONE: E-MAIL:

503-986-2653

Karj.a.frey@odot.state.or.us

FAX:

503-986-2717

PREBID

NO

CONFERENCE:

THIS IS A FORMAL PROCUREMENT. FAXED BIDS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.

<u>BID SUBMITTAL ADDRESS AND BID CLOSING</u>: The Oregon Department of Transportation (hereinafter "ODOT") will receive Bids as outlined in the Schedule of Events on page 2 until the final time and closing date shown above, or as amended by Addenda, at the ODOT PROCUREMENT OFFICE at:

OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PROCUREMENT OFFICE 455 AIRPORT RD. SE, BUILDING K SALEM, OREGON 97301-5348

SINGLE POINT OF CONTACT: There will be only 1 point of contact during the procurement process. This includes the bidding process; requests for brand approval, change, clarification, and protests; the award process; and any other questions that may arise. The Single Point of Contact will be the Buyer listed above, unless otherwise stated in SECTION F Special Price Agreement Terms and Conditions." Any questions or issues that may arise regarding the specifications, the bidding process, or the award process must be directed to the Buyer listed above. ODOT's official response to any questions or requests will be through direct letters (electronic / hard copy) or the addendum process.

FOR MORE INFORMATION please refer to Section B "General Bidding Information and Instructions to Bidders".

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTIONS C	DHI	IKN	AND O MUST B	E COMPLETED	AND RETURNED	WITH BID RESPONSE
3F(*)(()(Y)3 (*)	,,,	., ,		- (.C.MOPL F-161)	MINI RELURIEL	/ WILLIA DILLA REAPLINAE

SECTION A - INVITATION TO BID SUMMARY	3
SECTION B - GENERAL BIDDING INFORMATION AND INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS	
SECTION C - SPECIFICATIONS.	
SECTION D - FINAL BID PRICING SECTION	
SECTION E - STANDARD PRICE AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS	
SECTION F - SPECIAL PRICE AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS	50
SECTION G - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	
SECTION H - BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS & RESPONSIBILITY INQUIRY	
SECTION I - RESIDENCY INFORMATION	
SECTION J - CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH OREGON TAX LAWS	
SECTION K - CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH NONDISCRIMINATION LAWS	5
SECTION L - RECYCLED PRODUCTS CERTIFICATION	
SECTION M - OFFICE OF MINORITY, WOMEN OWNED, AND EMERGING SMALL BUSINESS (OMWESB) CERTIFICATION	
SECTION N - ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	58
SECTION O - SIGNATURE OF BIDDER'S DULY AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE	59
SECTION P - PRICE AGREEMENT	59
EXHIBIT A: SAMPLE PURCHASE ORDER (PO)	61
EXHIBIT B: PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS	
ATTACHMENTS: The following attachments are hereby incorporated by reference:	

ATTACHMENTS: The following attachments are hereby incorporated by reference:

ATTACHMENT A - Reverse Auction Submittal Form E-bidding Instructions

*Bidder is responsible for completing and returning any page(s) in any attachment(s) which require a response.

SCHEDULE OF EVENTS

ITB Issue/Release:

January 4, 2011

Deadline for Requesting Changes/ Clarifications:

January 18, 2011 4:00 PM

Reverse Auction schedule of bid price closing dates

1st Round Price Closing: January 31, 2011 @ 2 pm

and times:

2nd Round Price Closing: February 1, 2011 @ 2 pm

3rd Round Price Closing: February 2, 2011 @ 2 pm 4th Round Price Closing: February 3, 2011 @ 10 am

February 3, 2011 2:00 PM

Final Bid Closing Date: **Price Agreement Start Date:**

TBD

Note: All dates listed are subject to change.

SECTION A - INVITATION TO BID SUMMARY

This Section is included to familiarize potential Bidders with the overall scope of the anticipated procurement, the selection criteria, and the method of award. Refer to detailed Sections identified in the TABLE OF CONTENTS, for complete information.

A.1 PURPOSE OF SOLICITATION: The Oregon Department of Transportation ("ODOT") hereby solicits bids to establish multiple Price Agreements for the purchase of Rollers, as specified in this ITB.

A.2 RESERVED:

- A.3 REVERSE AUCTION METHOD OF BIDDING: Bidders shall compete for the award of the Contract by offering successively lower prices for each Roller Category. ODOT will post lowest pricing per category periodically throughout the solicitation period.
 - A.3.1 FORMS TO USE: Bidders shall submit requested pricing information for each Category of interest. Bidders shall use the REVERSE AUCTION SUBMITTAL FORM ("Form") provided for bidding.
 - A.3.2 REVERSE AUCTION BID SUBMISSION: In order to be considered for the next pending pricing due date, the Form must be submitted via email or hard copy to the Single Point of Contact listed on page 1 no later than the scheduled dates and times (See Schedule of Events). Forms submitted via email must follow directions on Form for submission to ensure proper receipt by ODOT. Forms submitted incorrectly may not be considered. Pricing submittal information regarding pricing will be posted on ORPIN as a bid tab per schedule in page 2.
 - **A.3.3 UNIT AND TOTAL PRICE**: The price of each item must be clearly shown in the space provided in the Reverse Auction Submission Form. The price of each item must be extended to show the total where required.
 - <u>A.3.4</u> Identity of the Bidders will not be disclosed until the final Bid closing date and time. Only the successively lower price per category will be revealed to the participants.
 - **A.3.5 FINAL BID SUBMISSION:** Upon final Bid Closing Date and Time, Bidder shall submit an entire bid packet to include those items outlined in Section B.4. Last and final bid pricing offered (including optional items) must be included in Section D.
 - A.3.6 OPTIONAL BID ITEMS: Prior to final Bid closing date and time provided in Schedule of Events table, Bidder may additionally submit unit pricing for optional accessories. Bidders shall clearly identify all Goods bid; brand name, model and number, if any, must be shown. Bidders shall provide all requested information, including pricing in U.S. funds, for each bid item. Bids received with incomplete or illegible bid information may be considered non-responsive and may be rejected.

A.4 METHOD OF AWARD:

A.4.1 Reverse Auction: ODOT intends to utilize the Reverse Auction award methodology as authorized in OAR 125-246-0140, 125-247-0288 and OAR 731-147-0040.

A.4.2 Multiple Selection: It is anticipated that approximately 6 Bidders will be selected for Price Agreement award from this solicitation. Agency, at its sole discretion, may select more or fewer based on the Bids submitted and the results of the evaluation. ODOT intends to award on an "all or none" basis, resulting in 1 Price Agreement to the lowest responsible bidder submitting a responsive bid with the lowest total price for all mandatory items meeting the Specifications, references and qualifications for each category. To arrive at the lowest total price, the bid price (per unit) will be multiplied by the indicated quantity to arrive at a total price per line item. Each total line price will be added together for a grand total, per category, that will be used to determine the lowest total price. ODOT reserves the right to withdraw any or all items from award consideration.

Up to one year following the close of this solicitation, Agency may select one or more additional Responsive and Responsible Bidder(s) (pending agreement by Bidders) for Contract award in the event that a contract previously awarded from this solicitation is terminated, or Agency determines award of additional Contract(s) is necessary to meet Agency's needs for Services and Goods within the scope of this solicitation.

A.5 ESTIMATE OF PURCHASES:

A.5.1 ODOT makes no representation or guarantee whatsoever as to the amount or type of purchases to be made under this Price Agreement. All estimated quantities listed in this ITB, including those listed in SECTION D PRICING PROPOSAL and on the REVERSE AUCTION SUBMITTAL FORM are estimates of the quantities that may be ordered by ODOT during the initial term of the Price Agreement. These figures are intended to serve only as a general guide to Bidders and a method for bid evaluation, and are not be construed as a representation or guarantee of the number or quantity of items that may actually be purchased by ODOT during the initial term of the Price Agreement. By submitting a bid, each Bidder thereby expressly waives and relinquishes any claim it may have, if awarded the Price Agreement, which arise out of or is related to the quantity of items ODOT actually purchases under the Price Agreement.

A.6 RESERVED

A.7 DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) PARTICIPATION GOALS: The utilization of federal funds is not anticipated in this Price Agreement and no DBE Participation goals will be assigned. In the event that federal funding becomes available and will be utilized, the Price Agreement may be amended to require DBE participation and compliance with the DBE provisions.

SECTION B - GENERAL BIDDING INFORMATION AND INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

B.1 GENERAL DEFINITIONS:

"Addendum" or "Addenda" means an addition or deletion to, a material change in, or clarification of, the ITB. Addenda will be labeled as such and will be made available to all interested Bidders in accordance with OAR 137-047-0430 (2).

"Bid" means the Bidder's written offer submitted in response to the ITB, including all necessary attachments and information required to be submitted prior to award. (Refer to **SECTION B.4.**)

"Bid Closing" means the date and time set in the ITB for Bid submission, after which Bids may not be submitted, modified, or withdrawn by Bidder.

<u>"Bid Opening"</u> means the same date and time set for Bid Closing, unless otherwise specified in **SECTION B.10** or by Addendum.

"Bidder" means the person or other legal entity that submits a Bid in response to an ITB.

"Contract" means the entire agreement between the Contractor and ODOT, comprised of the Invitation to Bid, Successful Bidder's Bid, a signed Purchase Order, and Contract amendments, if any.

"Contractor" means the person, organization, or other legal entity with whom ODOT enters into a Contract setting prices, terms, and conditions for the purchase of Goods and delivery of incidental Services pursuant to the ITB.

<u>"F.O.B. Destination"</u> means the price of the goods includes all transportation and handling charges, unless specified otherwise in the solicitation document. Responsibility and liability for loss or damage remains with the Contractor until final inspection and acceptance when responsibility passes to ODOT except as to latent defects, fraud and Contractor's warranty obligations.

"Goods", "Goods and services" or "goods or services" means supplies, equipment, materials, installed components, accessories, services and any personal property, including any tangible, intangible and intellectual property and rights and licenses in relation thereto, that a contracting agency is authorized by law to procure. "Goods and services" or "goods or services" includes combinations of any of the items identified in this paragraph.

"Invitation to Bid" or "ITB" means the entire solicitation document, including all parts, sections, exhibits, attachments, Addenda, and all matter incorporated by reference.

"OAR" means the Oregon Administrative Rules.

"ODOT" means the State, acting by and through the Oregon Department of Transportation.

"ODOT Procurement Office" means the Procurement Office Section of ODOT.

<u>"Oregon Procurement Information Network"</u> or <u>"ORPIN"</u> means the current State of Oregon Automated Procurement System used by the Oregon Department of Transportation. The ORPIN System website is located at: http://orpin.oregon.gov/open.dli/welcome

"ORS" means the Oregon Revised Statutes.

"Price Agreement" means a Public Contract for the Procurement of Supplies and Services at a set price.

<u>"Purchase Order"</u> means the purchase document submitted to Contractor for the purchase of Goods under the Contract.

"Specifications" means the specific attributes of the Goods to be purchased and incidental Services to be provided, if any.

"Services" means the services, if any, to be performed under the Contract incidental to the purchase of Goods

"State" means the State of Oregon and its boards, commissions, departments, institutions, branches, and agencies.

"UCC" means the Uniform Commercial Code, ORS chapters 71 and 72, as applicable and as amended from time to time.

<u>"Units"</u> and <u>"Goods"</u> may on occasion be used interchangeably; in such cases "Unit" means "Good," as defined in this Section.

"Work" includes all labor, material and services required to complete a Good.

B.2 GENERAL INFORMATION:

Specific laws and rules that govern the solicitation process are found in 279A and 279B of the Oregon Revised Statute ("ORS") and the Attorney General's Model Public Contract Rules, Oregon Administrative Rule ("OAR") 137-046 and -047 and, OAR 731, Division 146 and 147 as adopted by the Oregon Department of Transportation. This ITB and resulting Price Agreement (s) may be subject to other laws and rules. Bidders should obtain and become acquainted with the applicable provisions of the above laws and rules.

OREGON REVISED STATUES (ORS 279A and 279B): Can be obtained from Legislative Counsel Committee, 900 Court St NE, S101 State Capitol, Salem, OR 97301-0630. Phone (503) 986-1243, or online at:

http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/279a.html

http://www.leg.state.or.us/ors/279b.html

OREGON ATTORNEY GENERAL'S MODEL PUBLIC CONTRACT RULES (OAR 137-046 and 047): Can be obtained from the Oregon Department of Justice, Publications Section, 1162 Court St NE, Salem, OR 97301-4096; Phone (503) 378-2402 or online at:

http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/rules/OARS 100/OAR 137/137 046.html

http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/rules/OARS 100/OAR 137/137 047.html

OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION RULES (OAR 731-146 and 731-147): Can be obtained online at:

http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/rules/OARS 700/OAR 731/731 146.html

http://arcweb.sos.state.or.us/rules/OARS 700/OAR_731/731 147.html

B.2.1 OREGON PROCUREMENT INFORMATION NETWORK ("ORPIN"):

B.2.1.1 ADDRESS: http://orpin.oregon.gov/open.dll/welcome

B.2.1.2 INFORMATION AVAILABLE: The ITB, all Addenda, and most attachments may be downloaded from ORPIN. Contractor must be registered on ORPIN in order to download attachments. Some attachments may not be available on the ORPIN System, and may be obtained from ODOT Procurement Office per instructions on Page 1 of this ITB. Basic registration on ORPIN is free.

VENDORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING THAT THEIR VENDOR INFORMATION IS CURRENT AND CORRECT. ODOT will accept no responsibility for incorrect vendor information shown on ORPIN, or information missing from it.

<u>CAUTION</u>: Bidders should consult ORPIN System regularly until Bid Closing to assure that they have not missed any Addenda announcements.

- **B.2.2. POSTING OF NOTICES:** ORPIN is utilized by ODOT for advertising Invitations to Bid, Reverse Auction Submission Form Bid Tab, and for posting notices of changes to those solicitations (via Addenda). However, Bidders must obtain the actual solicitation documents themselves either by accessing the ORPIN Internet Web site and downloading them (see B.2.1), or by ordering a hard copy from the ODOT Buyer.
 - **B.2.2.1** Addenda: Bidders are exclusively responsible for downloading Addenda from the ORPIN website. It is imperative to check the ORPIN website frequently right up to the Bid closing date. By submitting a Bid, each Bidder waives any claims related to its failure to keep so apprised.
- **B.2.3 TRADE SECRETS:** Any information Bidder submits in response to the ITB that Bidder considers a trade secret under ORS 192.501(2) or confidential proprietary information, and that Bidder wishes to protect from public disclosure, must be clearly labeled with the following: "This information constitutes a trade secret under ORS 192.501(2) or confidential proprietary information, and is not to be disclosed except in accordance with the Oregon Public Records Law, ORS Chapter 192".

Bidders are cautioned that price information submitted in response to an ITB is generally not considered a trade secret under the Oregon Public Records Law. Further, information submitted by Bidder that is already in the public domain is not protected. The State will not be liable for disclosure or release of

information when authorized or required by law or court order to do so. The State will also be immune from liability for disclosure or release of information under the circumstances set out in ORS 646.473(3).

B.3 BID FORMAT:

- B.3.1 SIGNATURE REQUIRED; BIDDER AFFIRMATIONS: Bids must be signed in ink, or via electronic signature, by an authorized representative of the Bidder. Bidder's signature, submission of a REVERSE AUCTION SUBMITTAL FORM and subsequent signed Bid in response to the ITB constitutes Bidder's affirmation that:
 - **B.3.1.1** Bidder has completely read and understands all of the provisions of the particular ITB.
 - **B.3.1.2** The Bid submitted is in response to the specific language contained in the ITB, and Bidder has made no assumptions based upon either (a) verbal or written statements not contained in the ITB, or (b) any previously-issued ITB, if any.
 - **B.3.1.3** The Bid was prepared independently from all other Bidders, and without collusion, fraud, or other dishonesty.
 - **B.3.1.4** ODOT will not be liable for any claims or be subject to any defenses asserted by Bidder based upon, resulting from, or related to, Bidder's failure to comprehend all requirements of the ITB.
 - **B.3.1.5** ODOT will not be liable for any expenses incurred by Bidder in preparing and submitting its Bid or in participating in the Bid evaluation/selection process.
 - **B.3.1.6** Bidder accepts and agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of the Price Agreementand all Contracts entered into thereunder, and agrees to provide all Goods ordered by ODOT under the Price Agreement.

No consideration will be given to any claim resulting from bidding without fully comprehending all requirements of the Invitation to Bid.

- **B.3.2 IN WRITING:** Bids and pricing information must be prepared by typewriter, ink or by computer, but must be signed in ink or electronic signature by an authorized representative of the Bidder. No oral, telephone, or facsimile Bids will be accepted.
- **B.3.3 FORMS TO BE USED:** Required information must be submitted on the forms specified in the ITB. Any information Bidder submits that is not required to be included on forms prescribed by ODOT must be formatted in the manner called for in the ITB and submitted on Bidder's letterhead or Drawing title block.

B.3.4 BID FORMAT—EMAILED BIDS:

Emailed Bids may be allowed, per the following;

B.3.4.1 Definition: An "Emailed Bid", as used in this solicitation, means a Bid, Reverse Auction Submittal Form, modification of a Bid or withdrawal of a Bid that is transmitted to and received by ODOT via the internet and received at the ODOT Buyer email address listed on page 1 of the solicitation document.

<u>B.3.4.2 Timely Submission</u>: Bidders may submit Email Bids in response to this solicitation. The entire response must arrive at the place and by the time specified in the Invitation to Bid. Any communication or notice delivered by email is effective on the day the transmitting machine generates a receipt of the successful transmission, if transmission was during normal business hours, or on the next business day, if transmission was outside normal business hours of the recipient. To be effective against Agency, any notice transmitted by email must be confirmed by telephone notice to ODOT's Single Point of Contact.

B.3.4.3 Signatures: Bidders must sign their Email Bids.

B.3.4.4 Request for Original Bid: ODOT reserves the right to award the Contract solely on the Email Bid; however, upon ODOT's request, the apparent successful Bidder shall promptly submit its complete original signed Bid.

B.3.4.5 Responsibility for Transmission Failure: If the Bidder chooses to transmit an Emailed Bid, ODOT will not be responsible for any failure attributable to the transmission or receipt of the Bid including, but not limited to the following:

B.3.4.5.1 Receipt of garbled or incomplete Bid or proposal documents

B.3.4.5.2 Availability or condition of the receiving Email equipment

B.3.4.5.3 Incompatibility between the sending and receiving equipment

B.3.4.5.4 Delay in transmission or receipt of Bid documents

B.3.4.5.5 Failure of the Bidder to properly identify the Bid documents

B.3.4.5.6 Illegibility of Bid documents

B.3.5 BID FORMAT—ORPIN Electronic Bids (E - BIDS):

NOTE

E-BIDDING MAY ONLY BE USED FOR FINAL BID SUBMISSION, NOT REVERSE AUCTION SUBMITTAL BIDS.

E-Bid may be allowed, per the following;

B.3.5.1 Definition: An "E-bid", as used in this solicitation, means a Bid, modification of a Bid or withdrawal of a Bid that is transmitted to and received by ODOT via the ORPIN website.

B.3.5.2 Timely Submission: Bidders may submit E-Bids in response to this solicitation. The entire response must be posted and delivered within the ORPIN system by the time specified in the Invitation to Bid.

B.3.5.3 Signatures:

Signature on Bid must be signed by an authorized representative of the bidder. Signature on a bid certifies that the bid is made without connection with any person, firm or corporation making a bid for the same goods and/or services and is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud. Submission of an E-bid through the ORPIN system binds the Bidder in the same manner as would a hard copy signature.

Signature on a Bid or response to an E-bid certifies that the bidder has read and fully understands all bid specifications, terms and conditions. No consideration will be given to any claim resulting from bidding without comprehending all requirements of the Invitation to Bid.

<u>B.3.5.4 Request for Original Bid</u>: ODOT reserves the right to award the Contract solely on the E-Bid provided through the ORPIN system; however, upon ODOT's request, the apparent successful Bidder shall promptly submit its complete original signed Bid.

B.4 FINAL BID CONTENTS:

B.4.1 INFORMATION TO BE INCLUDED; ATTACHMENTS: All ITB submittal copies must be complete in all respects, including necessary signatures, certifications, documentation, responses on pricing and specifications pages, and all other required information. Responses to Detailed Specifications must be complete as to actual numbers for requested weights, sizes, dimensions, part numbers, ratings, capacities, etc. All necessary attachments (e.g., residency statement, references, descriptive literature, manufacturers' warranties, etc.) must be submitted with the Bid in the required format.

<u>B.4.1.1</u> The information documentation listed below in this section must be submitted with the Bid or by a Bid modification prior to Bid Closing, or the Bid will be found to be non-responsive.

SECTION C - SPECIFICATIONS

SECTION D - BID PRICING SECTION

SECTION H - BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY INQUIRY / CONTRACTOR REFERENCES;

SECTION I - RESIDENCY INFORMATION

SECTION J - CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS

SECTION K - CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH NONDISCRIMINATION

LAWS

SECTION N - ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

SECTION 0 - SIGNATURE OF BIDDER'S DULY AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE:

ADDENDA - (IF REQUIRED)

B.4.2 PRODUCT IDENTIFICATION: Bidders shall clearly identify all products bid. Brand name, model, and serial, or identification number, where applicable, must be shown. ODOT reserves the right to reject any Bid when the product information submitted with the Bid is incomplete.

B.4.2.1 "OR EQUAL": Brand names, if any, listed in the Specifications as "or equal" or "or equivalent" establish the minimum requirements for quality, utility, durability, function, purpose, warranty, etc. Other product brands may be offered that are equal to or better than the brand designated. Bidder may show cost differences, alternates, and options in the space provided in the ITB.

B.4.2.2 "OR APPROVED EQUAL": Brand names, if any, listed in the Specifications as "or approved equal" or "or approved equivalent" establish the minimum requirements for quality, utility, durability, function, purpose, etc. Other product brands may be offered if they are equal to or better than the brand designated. HOWEVER, APPROVAL OF THESE OTHER PRODUCT BRANDS MUST BE REQUESTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROCEDURES SPECIFIED IN SECTION B.5.

B.4.2.3 ODOT WILL DETERMINE, IN ITS SOLE DISCRETION, WHETHER A PRODUCT OFFERED IS "EQUAL". When the designation is "or equal" or "or equivalent," ODOT will make its decision after Bid Closing. When the designation is "or approved equal" or "or approved

equivalent," ODOT will consider timely requests for approval and make its decision prior to Bid Closing.

BIDDERS NOTE: IF A DESIGNATED BRAND HAS BEEN AUTHORIZED PURSUANT TO A BRAND-NAME EXEMPTION, AND "OR EQUAL" OR "OR EQUIVALENT" IS NOT SPECIFIED, ALTERNATIVE BRANDS MAY NOT BE OFFERED. BIDDER SHALL BE RESTRICTED TO BIDDING THE DESIGNATED BRAND ONLY.

B.4.3 CORPORATIONS, JOINT VENTURES/PARTNERSHIPS: Corporations, partnerships and joint ventures shall supply, with Bid submission, the name of the contact person for the entity. Prior to award, Bidder must provide a copy of the joint venture agreement, partnership agreement or bylaws evidencing authority to Bid and to enter into the resulting Contract that may be awarded, together with corporate resolutions (if applicable) evidencing corporate authority to participate as a corporation, joint venturer or partner. A contact person must also be designated for purposes of receiving all notices and communications under the Contract, and to act as Contractor's Contract Administrator. All partners and joint venturers shall be required to sign the Contract awarded.

B.4.4 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE REQUIRED: Incomplete Bids (not in substantial compliance with ITB requirements) cannot be considered, and cannot be supplemented by submissions delivered after Bid Closing. However, ODOT may waive minor informalities and irregulanties, and may seek clarification of any response that, in its sole discretion, it deems necessary or advisable. Some or all of the clarifications or modifications may become part of the final Contract. Clarifications may not be used to rehabilitate a non-responsive Bid.

B.5 METHODS OF SEEKING MODIFICATION OF ITB PROVISIONS:

B.5.1 PROCEDURE: The appropriate means of seeking modifications to provisions of an ITB are through (a) requests for "approved equal" or "approved equivalent" product approval; (b) requests for clarification; (c) formal submittal of requests for changes to Contractual terms or Specifications; and (d) formal submittal of protests of Contractual terms or Specifications.

Any Bid response that includes non-approved alternate product brands where approval is required, or that takes exception to the Specifications or Contractual terms of the ITB, may be deemed non-responsive and may be rejected.

B.5.1.1 REQUEST FOR "APPROVED EQUAL/EQUIVALENT" PRODUCT APPROVAL: Requests for approval of brands as "approved equals" or "approved equivalents" of the product brand specified in the ITB, if any, will be considered <u>unless</u> the specified brand is identified in the ITB as the subject of a product brand exemption. Requests for brand approval must be submitted in writing to the single point of contact shown on page 1 of the ITB. To be considered, the request for brand approval must be received by ODOT by the deadline specified in **SECTION B.5.2**. The request must include sufficient product information to enable evaluation of equivalency.

B.5.1.2 REQUEST FOR CLARIFICATION: Any Bidder requiring clarification of any provision of the ITB may make a request for clarification in writing, to the single point of contact shown on page 1 of the ITB. To be considered, the request for clarification must be received by ODOT by the deadline specified on page 2 of the solicitation. PROVIDED, HOWEVER, CLARIFICATIONS, WHETHER VERBAL, IN WRITING, OR INCLUDED IN AN ADDENDUM AS

A "CLARIFICATION", DO NOT CHANGE SPECIFICATIONS, CONTRACTUAL TERMS, OR PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS OF AN ITB. IF A REQUEST FOR CLARIFICATION RAISES AN ISSUE THAT ODOT DETERMINES SHOULD BE HANDLED BY FORMALLY AMENDING THE ITB, ODOT WILL DO SO ONLY BY ANNOUNCING SUCH A CHANGE IN THE ADDENDUM, NOT THROUGH INFORMATION IDENTIFIED MERELY AS A "CLARIFICATION". (Refer to SECTION B.5.3).

B.5.1.3 REQUEST FOR CHANGES TO CONTRACTUAL TERMS OR SPECIFICATIONS: Any Bidder may submit a request for changes to Contractual terms or Specifications, in writing, to the single point of contact shown on page 1 of the ITB. To be considered, the request for changes must be received by ODOT by the deadline specified in SECTION B.5.2. The request must include the reason for requested changes, supported by factual documentation, and any proposed changes.

<u>B.5.1.3.1</u> If any omitted specification results in ambiguity as to material characteristics of the Goods, and inclusion is necessary to enable a reasonable person in the particular industry to properly identify such characteristics, an Offeror should seek a formal request for change to the specification, as set forth in this section B.5.1.3. Failure to make such a request is at Contractor's risk, and the Offeror awarded a Price Agreement shall be required to provide Goods meeting ODOTs needs with regard to any omitted specification for which change should reasonably have been sought.

B.5.1.4 PROTEST OF CONTRACTUAL TERMS OR SPECIFICATIONS: Any Bidder who believes the procurement process is contrary to law or that a Contractual term(s) or Specification(s) is unnecessarily restrictive, is legally flawed or improperly specifies a brand name, may submit a protest, in writing, to the Single Point of Contact listed on page 1 of the ITB. To be considered, the protest must be received by ODOT by the deadline specified in **B.5.2**. The protest must include the legal and factual grounds for the protest, evidence or supporting documentation that supports the grounds on which the protest is based; and relief sought, including any proposed changes.

B.5.2 METHOD OF SUBMITTING REQUESTS FOR MODIFICATION OF ITB PROVISIONS: Envelopes containing requests for clarification change, and Bid protests must be marked as follows:

Bid Request for Brand Approval Request for Substitution Request for Clarification Request for Change Protest ITB Number Bid Closing Date Bid Closing Time

and must be received by ODOT no later than the Deadline date noted on Page 2 of the ITB. Requests submitted via email are acceptable and must be forwarded to the single point of contact buyer listed on page 1 of the solicitation. Unless this specific deadline is extended by subsequent Addenda, no requests for brand name approval, substitution, clarification, change or protests pertaining to provisions contained in the originally-issued ITB will be considered after the date specified herein.

B.5.3 RESPONSE TO REQUESTS FOR BRAND APPROVAL, REQUESTS FOR CLARIFICATION, CHANGE, AND PROTEST: ODOT will promptly respond to each properly submitted written request for brand approval, substitution, clarification, change, and protest.

B.5.3.1 AMENDMENT/REVISION Where appropriate, ODOT will issue revisions and approve product substitutions via Addenda posted on the ORPIN website. ODOT may also informally respond to Bidder questions. HOWEVER, ANY SUCH RESPONSES DO NOT AFFECT THE PROVISIONS OF THE ITB. SPECIFICATIONS, CONTRACTUAL TERMS, AND PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS OF THE ITB CAN ONLY BE CHANGED VIA FORMAL ADDENDA ISSUED BY ODOT AND POSTED TO THE ORPIN WEBSITE.

<u>B.5.3.2 OTHER INFORMATION</u>. ODOT single point of contact may respond to properly submitted requests for clarification via Addenda (labeled "Clarification"), or through correspondence. ODOT may also respond informally to Bidder questions by phone, or during pre-Bid or Pre-award conferences, site inspections, product demonstrations, etc. However, neither clarifications nor informal responses amend the ITB. SPECIFICATIONS, CONTRACTUAL TERMS, AND PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS OF THE ITB CAN ONLY BE MODIFIED THROUGH FORMAL CHANGES ANNOUNCED IN ADDENDA ISSUED BY ODOT AND POSTED ON THE ORPIN SYSTEM (Refer to **SECTIONS B.5.1 - B.5.3**).

B.6 PROTEST OF ADDENDA/REVISION: Requests for clarification, change, and protests of Addenda provisions must be received by ODOT by the date specified in the Addendum, or they will not be considered. ODOT is not obligated by law to consider requests or protests of matters not added or modified by the Addenda.

B.7 BID MODIFICATION: Alterations and erasures made before Bid submission must EACH be INDIVIDUALLY initialed in ink by the person signing the Bid. Bids, once submitted, may be modified in writing before Bid Closing. Modifications made after Bid submission must be prepared on Bidder's company letterhead, be signed by an authorized representative, and state that the modifications amend and supersede the identified portions of the prior Bid. Failure to comply with the provisions of this paragraph Section B.7 may result in Bid rejection or rejection of the requested Bid modification.

<u>B.7.1</u> Nothing in the paragraph **B.7** will be construed as allowing the Bidder to after or otherwise change the form of the Bid, the form of the Contract, the conditions of the Bid, or the Specifications attached to the Bid documents.

B.7.2 Modifications must be submitted and marked as follows:

Bid Modification ITB Number Bid Closing Date Bid Closing Time

B.7.3 Bidders may not modify Bids after Bid Closing.

B.8 FINAL BID SUBMISSION:

B.8.1 NUMBER OF COPIES; SIGNATURE REQUIRED: Bidders shall submit a total of 2 signed copies of the Bid. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A BID BEARING A SIGNATURE WILL RESULT IN REJECTION OF THE BID UNLESS THE "MISTAKE" PROVISIONS OF OAR 137-047-0470(2)(a) ARE APPLICABLE.

B.8.2 ADDRESS AND COVER INFORMATION: To ensure proper identification and handling, all packages and envelopes must be clearly marked as follows:

ITB Number Closing Date Closing Time

ODOT will not be responsible for the proper handling of any Bid not properly identified, marked and submitted in a timely manner. Any communication or notice given by personal delivery will be effective when actually delivered.

B.9 FINAL BID WITHDRAWALS:

- **B.9.1: IN WRITING:** Bids may be withdrawn in writing when submitted on Bidder's letterhead, signed by Bidder's authorized representative, and received by ODOT at the address or email address specified on page 1 prior to Bid Closing. Bid withdrawals must be labeled as such and contain the ITB number.
- B.9.2: IN PERSON: Bids may also be withdrawn in person before Bid Closing upon presentation of appropriate identification, submittal of evidence of authorization to act for Bidder, and signature confirmation of Bid withdrawal.
- **B.9.3: ODOT CANCELLATION:** ODOT Reserves the right to cancel the procurement or reject any or all bids in accordance with ORS 279B.100.
- **B.10 FINAL BID OPENING:** Final Bid opening will be held at the ODOT Procurement Office, 455 Airport Rd SE, Bldg. K, Salem, Oregon, at the date and time set for Bid Closing, unless otherwise specified in the solicitation or by Addendum. Award decisions will not be made at Bid Opening, and attendance is optional. Only Bidders' names and extended prices will be read.
 - **B.10.1 TIME FOR BID ACCEPTANCE:** Any Bidders Bid is a firm Bid, irrevocable, valid and binding on the Bidder for not less than 30 calendar days from the Bid Closing Date.
 - B.10.2 EXTENSION OF TIME FOR BID ACCEPTANCE: ODOT may request, orally or in writing, that Bidders extend, in writing, the time during which ODOT may consider their Bid(s) prior to contract execution. If a Bidder agrees to such extension, the Bid will continue as a firm Bid, irrevocable, valid and binding on the Bidder for the agreed-upon extension period.

B.11 REJECTION OF BIDS:

- **B.11.1 REJECTION OF ALL BIDS:** ODOT may reject all Bids for good cause upon its finding that it is in the public interest to do so. ODOT may reject any or all bids in accordance with ORS 279B.100.
- **B.11.2 REJECTION OF PARTICULAR BIDS:** ODOT may reject a particular Bid for any of the reasons listed under OAR 137-047-0640.
- B.12 FINAL BID EVALUATION CRITERIA: Bids will be evaluated to identify the lowest responsive Bid submitted by a responsible Bidder not otherwise disqualified. [Refer to OAR 137-047-0640(1)] Adjustments made to account for reciprocal preferences and percentage of recycled materials incorporated into the Goods will be for

Bid evaluation purposes only. (Refer to **SECTIONS B.12.4 and B.12.5**). No such adjustments will operate to amend Bidder's Bid or any Contract awarded pursuant to the solicitation.

- **B.12.1 RESPONSIVENESS:** To be considered responsive, the Bid must substantially comply with all requirements of the ITB and all prescribed public solicitation procedures. In making such evaluation, ODOT may waive minor informalities and irregularities.
- **B.12.2 RESPONSIBILITY**: Prior to award of a Contract ODOT will evaluate whether the apparent successful Bidder meets the applicable standards of responsibility identified in OAR 137-047-0640. In doing so, ODOT may request information in addition to that already required in the ITB, when ODOT, in its sole discretion, considers it necessary or advisable.
- **B.12.3 OREGON PREFERENCE:** Awards will be subject to preference for products produced or manufactured in Oregon, price, fitness and quality being equal (ORS 279A.120).
- **B.12.4 RECIPROCAL PREFERENCE:** For Bid evaluation purposes only, to determine the lowest responsible Bidder, a nonresident Bidder eligible to receive a preference in the state that the Bidder resides, shall have that same percentage preference added to the Bid amount in accordance with OAR 137-046-0310. For example, if the Bidder is from a state that grants a 10 percent preference to local Bidders, ODOT will add 10 percent to that Bidder's Bid price.
- **B.12.5 RECYCLED MATERIAL:** For Bid evaluation purposes only, ODOT will deduct from the Bid price an amount equivalent to the dollar value of the percentage of the Goods offered by Bidder constituting recycled paper and non-paper products, up to a maximum of twelve percent (12%) of the Bid price for recycled paper products, and up to a maximum of 5 percent (5%) of the Bid price for recycled non-paper products.
 - <u>B.12.5.1</u> Bidder shall supply with their final bid, all documentation by the manufacturer, on manufacturer letterhead, which clearly shows percentages of recycled material in the Goods bid. Any Bidder that claims recycled material content but does not provide the required manufacturers documentation with the Bid, shall not receive a deduction for their claim.
- <u>B.13 PROCESSING OF BIDS</u>: Acknowledgment that the selection process is complete (whether by posting of a Bid tabulation sheet, issuance of notice of intent to award, or otherwise), does not operate as a representation by ODOT that any Bid submitted was complete, sufficient, lawful in any respect, or otherwise in substantial compliance with the ITB requirements.
- **B.14 WITHDRAWAL BY ODOT OF BID ITEMS OR SPECIFICATIONS PRIOR TO AWARD:** ODOT reserves the right to delete Bid Items or Specifications. The deletion of 1 or more items does not affect the method of award. (**Refer to Sections D.1 and D.2**).
- **B.15 INTENT-TO-AWARD ANNOUNCEMENT:** Pursuant to OAR 137-047-0610, ODOT reserves the right to announce its intent to award prior to formal Contract award by posting the tabulation sheet of final Bid results on the ORPIN System, or by letter or email ("Intent-to-Award Announcement"). The Intent-to-Award Announcement serves as notice to all Bidders that ODOT intends to make an award.
- B.16 PROTEST OF INTENT TO AWARD: Adversely-affected or aggrieved Bidders shall have 7 calendar days from the date of the Intent-to-Award Announcement within which to file a written protest. Protests submitted after

that date will not be considered. Protests must specify the grounds upon which the protest is based (Refer to OAR 137-047-0740).

- **B.16.1** In order to be an adversely affected or aggrieved Bidder, the Bidder must claim to be eligible for award of the Contract as the lowest responsible and responsive Bidder and that any and all lower Bidders are ineligible to receive Contract award.
- **B.16.2** An actual Bidder who is adversely affected or aggrieved by the award of the Contract to another Bidder may protest award, in writing, within the timeline established. The written protest must state the grounds upon which the protest is based. No protest of award will be considered after deadline.
- <u>B.16.3</u> Pursuant to OAR 137-047-0740, no protest against award because of the content of Bid Specifications or Contract terms will be considered after the deadline established for submitting protests of Bid Specifications or Contract terms.
- <u>B.17 RESPONSE TO INTENT-TO-AWARD PROTESTS</u>: ODOT will respond in writing to intent-to-award protests properly submitted by adversely-affected or aggrieved Bidders. ODOT may also respond to intent-to-award protests submitted by other Bidders for purposes of clarification. However, any response provided by ODOT is not intended to, and will not in and of itself constitute, confirmation that the Bidder is, in fact, adversely affected or aggreeved, and therefore entitled to protest an intent to award, or that the protest was timely or correctly filed.
- **B.18 AWARD:** After expiration of the 7 calendar-day intent-to-award protest period, and the address of all protests, ODOT will proceed with final award. (If ODOT receives only 1 Bid for a category, ODOT reserves the right to dispense with the intent-to-award protest period and proceed with award of a Contract for that category.)
- <u>B.19 BID RESULTS</u>: To obtain final Bid results, interested parties may attend the public reading of the Bid. After awards are completed, Bidders may download a tabulation of Bid results from the ORPIN System. See Section B.2.1.
- **B.20 REVIEW OF AWARDED BID FILES:** Most information contained in submitted Bid files are public records and available for review at the ODOT Procurement Office noted on page 1 of the ITB by appointment during regular business hours (Monday through Friday).
- B.21 INFORMATION TO BE SUPPLIED BY THE APPARENT SUCCESSFUL BIDDER: Each apparent successful Bidder shall provide the following information to ODOT Buyer within 7 calendar days of notification of intent to award: Failure to present the required information within the response period may result in Bid rejection.
 - **B.21.1 PROOF OF INSURANCE**: All required proofs of insurance. (Bidders are encouraged to consult their insurance agent(s) about the insurance requirements contained in the ITB prior to Bid submission.)

B.21.2 CONFLICT OF INTEREST (COI):

Proposer must be in compliance with, and make any disclosures required by, the ODOT COI Guidelines:

- All Bidders must indicate in Section O that Bidder, its subcontractors and all other Associates are in compliance with all COI disclosure requirements.
- If there are no COI disclosures required for Bidder, its subcontractors or other Associates, then submittal of COI Disclosure form(s) is not required.
- If there are any COI disclosures required for Bidder (including subcontractors, or any other of Bidder's Associates), Bidder must submit a signed COI Disclosure Form with the Bid. Proposer shall

incorporate in each required COI Disclosure Form any COI disclosure information provided by its staff, and attach COI Disclosure Forms from each of its subcontractors that have required disclosures per the ODOT Conflict of Interest Guidelines.

The ODOT Conflict of Interest Guidelines and COI Disclosure Form are available at the following Internet site: http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/CS/OPO/AE.shtml#Forms (under "Misc. Procurement Related Forms").

<u>B.22 INVESTIGATION OF REFERENCES:</u> ODOT reserves the right to investigate the references and the past performance of any Bidder with respect to its successful performance of similar services, compliance with specifications and Contractual obligations, and its lawful payment of suppliers, subcontractors, and workers. ODOT may postpone the award or execution of the Contract after the announcement of the apparent successful Bidder in order to complete its investigation. ODOT reserves the right to reject any bid response or to reject all bid responses at any time prior to ODOT's execution of Contract, upon good cause and upon ODOT finding that it is in the public interest.

B.23 DEMONSTRATION OF EQUIPMENT: Bidders may be required to demonstrate equipment offered at a location and time designated by ODOT. Bidders shall supply all necessary equipment, supplies and labor for this demonstration. By submitting its signed Bid, Bidder signifies that it assumes full responsibility for any damages, awards, expenses, and costs, including court costs, and indemnifies the State from any liability of any kind, arising from or related to such demonstration. A request for a demonstration is no indication that a Bidder has been or shall be awarded a Contract.

<u>B.24 MANUFACTURING PROCESS CONFERENCE ("MPC")</u>: Prior to award of a Contract to the apparent successful Bidder, ODOT may conduct a complete point-by-point review of Bidder's data to ensure that the Bidder's response to technical Specifications fulfills the ITB requirements.

The Manufacturing Process Conference may be held at the following address unless otherwise indicated:

Oregon Department of Transportation Fleet Operations 455 Airport Rd SE, Bldg. K Salem, Oregon 97301-5348

B.25 COMMENCEMENT OF WORK: Contractor shall commence no work under this Contract until all certificates of insurance, as required in **Section G**, have been provided and a Purchase Order has been issued by ODOT.

B.26 INFORMATION TO BE SUPPLIED BY THE CONTRACTOR AFTER AWARD: Each Contractor shall provide the following information to ODOT upon request:

B.26.1 REPLACEMENT PARTS: A listing of common replacement parts for the Unit(s) bid and all representatives and dealerships carrying such replacement parts within the State. The listing of representatives and dealerships must include company name, street address, and telephone and fax numbers.

B.26.2 SERVICE LOCATIONS: A listing of service locations within the State authorized by the manufacturer to perform Preventive Maintenance and repairs in the State. The listing must include contact names, company name, street address, telephone and fax numbers, and hours of service. (For

purposes of this ITB, "Preventive Maintenance" means maintenance recommended or required by the manufacturer in order to ensure proper performance of the Unit and to satisfy the terms and conditions of warranty coverage).

SECTION C - SPECIFICATIONS

C.1 TECHNICAL DEFINITIONS

- "ANSI" means American National Standard Institute
- "API" means American Petroleum Institute.
- "AWG" means American Wire Guide.
- "dB" means decibel
- "DOT" means Department of Transportation
- "°F" means degrees Fahrenheit (measure of temperature).
- "ID" means identification
- "ISO" means International Organization for Standardization
- "MHz" means megahertz (radio frequency unif).
- "MPC" means Manufacturing Process Conference.
- "MPH" means miles per hour.
- "OSHA" means Occupational Safety & Health Administration
- "PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE" means maintenance recommended or required by the manufacturer in order to ensure proper performance of the Unit and to satisfy the terms and conditions of warranty coverage.
- "ROPS" means Roll Over Protective Structure
- "SAE" means Society of Automotive Engineers
- "SINAD" means Signal plus noise plus distortion to noise plus distortion ratio.
- "UV" means Ultra Violet

C.2 GENERAL PROVISIONS:

C.2.1 SILENCE OF SPECIFICATIONS: The apparent silence of the Specifications as to any detail, or the apparent omission of a detailed description concerning any point, will be regarded as meaning that only the best commercial practice is to prevail and that only materials and workmanship of first quality are to be used.

However, if any omitted Specification results in ambiguity as to material characteristics of the Bid item, or component incompatibility may affect required performance capabilities of a Bid item, and (a) inclusion of a Specification is necessary to enable a reasonable Bidder in the particular industry to properly identify material characteristics, or (b) a reasonable Bidder in the particular industry would recognize component incompatibility, Bidder shall submit a formal request for change as set forth in SECTION B.5. Failure to make such a request is at Bidder's risk, and the Bidder awarded a Contract shall be required to provide Goods meeting ODOT's needs with regard to any omitted Specification or component incompatibility for which a request for change should reasonably have been sought.

C.2.2 ADHERENCE TO THE SPECIFICATIONS: Deviations from any of the Specifications may result in Bid rejection. In the event ODOT determines that a deviation results in quality or characteristics that are equivalent or superior to that required in the Specification, ODOT may consider the deviation to be responsive. However, it is within ODOT's sole discretion to reject the Bid as non-responsive regardless of equivalence or superiority, and Bidder assumes the risk that its deviation renders the Bid non-responsive. Deviations unacceptable to ODOT that are discovered after delivery must be corrected at no cost to ODOT.

C.2.3 DRAWINGS:

- C.2.3.1 INCLUDED IN THE ITB: The purpose of drawings, if included in the ITB, is to clarify the intent of the Specifications. Bidder is cautioned that drawings may NOT be relied upon, and may NOT reflect complete or accurate information contained in the Specifications, including all material requirements. Bidder is also cautioned that if there is a conflict between the drawings and the Specifications, the Specifications take precedence over the drawings.
- C.2.3.2 REQUIRED OF BIDDER: Should the Bidder be required to provide drawings, Bidder shall submit them with its Bid with title block, or as otherwise indicated in the solicitation document.
- C.2.3.3 PRODUCTION DRAWINGS: If applicable, Contractor must submit production drawings prior to fabrication of unit.
- <u>C.2.4 STANDARD COMPONENTS</u>: Unless stipulated otherwise elsewhere in the ITB, Goods must include all components and accessories listed by the manufacturer as standard.
- C.2.5 COMPONENT SELECTION: The components selected must be rated for the maximum loading they would be subjected to in severe service environments. The torque rating of a driven component must exceed the input torque. The component parts and structure of the Unit must be sized and designed to safely withstand the maximum load imposed, without inducing failure or deterioration. All Units must be constructed from current production components as listed in current manufacturer parts catalogs.
- C.2.6 NECESSARY COMPONENTS: The Bidder awarded a Contract shall provide all components, hardware, and parts necessary for proper assembly, installation, and operation of the Unit, even though certain items may not be specifically described in the ITB Specifications. This includes all cables, fittings, couplers, brackets, adapters, etc. Bidder shall include the cost of such components, hardware and parts in the Bid price.
- <u>C.2.7 REFERENCED STANDARDS</u>: Certain ISO, SAE, and other consensus standards are referenced in these Specifications. Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in the ITB or required by law, the current version of each standard at time of delivery applies to the Unit and components thereof.
- <u>C.3 DEFAULT TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS</u>: Unless particular Specifications under **SECTION C.4** or the Special Contract Terms and Conditions require otherwise, the following default Specifications apply:
 - C.3.1 LABELS: All controls and instrumentation must be clearly identified and permanently labeled. Labels must be engraved plastic, stainless steel, or aluminum alloy. Decal labels must be printed on waterproof printable vinyl paper or film using waterproof UV resistant ink, Epson Dura-Brite or equal. The decal must have a waterproof UV over laminate exterior. Labels must be permanently affixed.
 - C.3.2 ADVERTISING: Advertising is not allowed, except for the standard manufacturer's markings typically on a Unit. A Contractor identification sticker not to exceed 4 inches by 6 inches may be applied.

C.3.3 RESERVED

C.3.4 SERVICE AND INSPECTION POINTS: The Unit must be designed so that inspection and service points are readily accessible, including grease fittings and tire valve stems, drain ports, etc.

- C.3.5 COVERS: All caps and covers that must be removed in order to perform daily to bi-weekly Preventive Maintenance, other scheduled warranty service, or maintenance recommended or required by the Contractor, must be secured to the Unit by a chain or other device. All hoses, pipes, and plumbing connections must have either retained covers, quick disconnects, or protective caps.
- C.3.6 SPECIAL TOOLS: If special tools, gauges, adapters, etc., are required for maintenance, adjustment or inspection of the Unit or a component thereof, they must be identified and delivered with the Unit. This includes the latest version of diagnostic software, where applicable.
- C.3.7 FILTERS: Filters must be easily accessible and replaceable without removing or disconnecting other components. If necessary, filters must be remotely mounted to meet this requirement. Spin-on or cartridge filters are required for fluid service. All filters must be heavy-duty and sized for severe service environments. Filter housings, including engine air cleaner housings, must be manufacturers standard material.
- C.3.8 BOLTS AND NUTS: Bolts must be used with nuts of identical grade. Bolt and nut grade certification may be required. Grade 8 bolts must be medium carbon alloy steel. Grade 8 bolts of boron steel or grain enhanced steel are unacceptable.
- C.3.9 HOSE, WIRE AND TUBE ROUTING: Hose, wire and tube routing must not impede normal maintenance and adjustment of the Unit. Hoses, wires and tubes must be securely and neatly positioned. Kinks in hoses, wires, or tubing are not acceptable. See also SECTIONS C.3.11, C.3.13 and C.3.16.

C.3.10 FLUIDS AND LUBRICANTS:

- <u>C.3.10.1</u> Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in the ITB, fluids and lubricants must be compatible with the following:
 - <u>C.3.10.1.1</u> Engine Oil SAE 15W40, API SM/CJ-4 or Manufacturer specified recommendation.
 - C.3.10.1.2 Hydraulic Fluid AW ISO 32
 - C.3.10.1.3 Grease Chevron Ultra Duty II, Grade 2
- C.3.10.2 Engine coolant must be a 50/50 mixture of low-silicate formula ethylene glycol based anti-freeze and water or extended life coolant. The coolant system must have a coolant overflow recovery system with an easily visible means of checking the fluid level without removing any parts.
- **C.3.10.3** Remote grease line must be flushed / purged prior to connection to bearing(s).
- C.3.11 HYDRAULIC SYSTEMS: (Workmanship Standards applicable to both traction and controls systems):
 - C.3.11.1 Components containing hydraulic fluid must not be installed in the cab.

- C.3.11.2 Hydraulic Symbols: Hydraulic symbols on schematics are interpreted per American National Standard Institute (ANSI) Y32.10.
- <u>C.3.11.3 Leaks</u>: Hydraulic leaks are not acceptable. A leak is defined as any fluid flow larger than 1 drop in 4 hours.
- <u>C.3.11.4</u> All components installed in the hydraulic system must be free of contamination and must be flushed out or cleaned, if necessary, to meet this requirement.
- C.3.11.5 Hose Routing: Hose routing must meet the following requirements:
 - C.3.11.5.1 The bend radii of hoses must meet or exceed the manufacturers' recommended minimums.
 - <u>C.3.11.5.2</u> Hoses must be routed no closer than 6 inches from exhaust components or other heat sources unless proper shielding is provided.
 - C.3.11.5.3 Hoses must not come in contact with moving parts.
 - <u>C.3.11.5.4</u> Hoses must be clamped to supporting structures at intervals not exceeding 60 hose diameters. Clamps must be polypropylene cushion clamps.
 - C.3.11.5.5 Black wire ties securing hoses must be used for ultraviolet stability.
 - <u>C.3.11.5.6</u> Fittings must be steel 37° flare type on all pressure lines where practical. Flat-faced "O" ring seal type fittings are acceptable.
 - <u>C.3.11.5.7</u> Hoses must not be routed through holes or across sharp edges without protection from being chafed or cut.
 - <u>C.3.11.5.8</u> Hoses must be of sufficient length to prevent stretching, distortion, and disconnecting.
 - <u>C.3.11.5.9</u> Hose(s) bundled and routed under equipment so that they are exposed to the road must be individually spiral wrapped to prevent rubbing. Spiral wrap must be Newman Heli-Tube or equal, outdoor, UV-resistant type.
- <u>C.3.11.6</u> Pipe fittings must not be used on the pressure side of any hydraulic circuit. A Teflon sealant must be used on pipe threads. Sealant must be used sparingly and must not contaminate the hydraulic system.
- C.3.11.7 All hoses on the pressure side of a circuit must conform to SAE 100R2 Type AT or SAE100R16. Hoses on the suction side of the hydraulic system must be rated for suction service.
- <u>C.3.11.8</u> All hydraulic components must be rated for working pressures to exceed system operating pressures, and have a minimum burst of 1.5 times the system operating pressure.

<u>C.3.11.9</u> All hydraulic quick disconnects must be equipped with protective covers that are retained by the coupling with a chain, wire cable or similar device. Snap-Tite series 71 with EF end fittings or approved equal must be used.

STATE TYPE OF QUICK DISCONNECTS PROVIDED: N/A

C.3.12 ELECTROMAGNETICS

- <u>C.3.12.1</u> Electromagnetic disturbances generated by on-board devices to radio receivers installed on the unit must not exceed the values in Table 5 of SAE Standard J551-4.
- <u>C.3.12.2</u> Systems or components on the unit must not be adversely affected by on-board or external electromagnetic emissions of the types and intensities defined in SAE Standards J551-1, J551-11, and J551-12.
- <u>C.3.12.3</u> Systems or components, electrical, hydraulic, or mechanical must not be adversely affected by calendrical transitions.
- <u>C.3.12.4</u> The receiver of a 2 -way radio (installed and operating at 26.0 to 28.0 MHz, 30.86 to 47.66 MHz or 150.0 to 460.0 MHz) must not be degraded more than 3dB by interference generated from electrical components supplied with the vehicle. (Degradation will be measured at the radio's specified 12dB SINAD point.) When a problem is identified it shall be the responsibility of the contractor to assist ODOT's OIT Wireless Group to resolve the situation.

C.3.13 ELECTRICAL WORKMANSHIP AND MATERIALS:

- <u>C.3.13.1</u> All wire must be un-tinned stranded copper with type GXL cross-linked polyolefin insulation in accordance with SAE J1128. Wires must be color coded. Dyes must not be used for color coding. Wire runs and color coding must be continuous and terminate within a weatherproof junction box. All terminals and wire ends that terminate inside junction boxes must be treated with a dielectric compound so as to be entirely submerged. Vendor installed wire connector plugs must be filled with dielectric grease prior to assembly. Aluminum wire is not acceptable.
- <u>C.3.13.2</u> Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in the ITB, except for multi-terminal connectors, solderless terminals must be used for all connections. Solder must be 60-40 tin-lead alloy with a single or multiple rosin core. Cold joints or air pockets are not acceptable. A maximum 25 watt iron must be used. Solder must not wick up under the wire insulation. Both the wire and the terminal must be tinned before soldering.
- C.3.13.3 All ring terminals on 10 AWG and smaller wires must be insulated.
- C.3.13.4 Insulated ring terminals must meet SAE AS7928 Class 1 and Class 2 requirements. SAE AS7928 ring terminals have an extra copper sleeve around the terminal barrel that improves the holding force and reduces corrosion. Ring terminals must be crimped with an AMP model 58433-3 ratchet crimper or equal ratchet crimper. If a specially- fabricated ratchet crimper is utilized, the Contractor shall submit a description of the intended crimping tool at ODOTs request.

- <u>C.3.13.5</u> Butt splices must have moisture barriers and integral polyolefin heat shrinkable sleeves. Heat shrink tubing over non-sealed butt splices is not acceptable. Butt splices must be crimped with an AMP model 55893-1 or equal ratchet crimper. If a specially-fabricated ratchet crimper is utilized, the Contractor shall submit a description of the intended crimping tool at ODOT's request.
- <u>C.3.13.6</u> FASTON type or spade terminals must not be used unless an integral part of premanufactured electrical component.
- C.3.13.7 Insulation-piercing connectors (Scotch Lok type) must not be used.
- <u>C.3.13.8</u> Wires must be protected by looms, sleeving and grommets. Wire bundles must be routed away from moving parts and hot components. Wires and bundles must be clamped at intervals of not greater than 20 inches with cushioned metal Adel type clamps.
- <u>C.3.13.9</u> Plastic wire ties must be black ultraviolet-protected. Wire ties must be applied with a Panduit GS2B or equal controlled-tension installation tool. If a specially-fabricated controlled-tension installation tool is utilized, the Contractor shall submit a description of the intended controlled-tension installation tool at ODOT's request.
- <u>C.3.13.10</u> All chassis/body combination units must have a separate grounding strap installed from the body to the chassis.
- C.3.13.11 Wire Routing: Wire routing must ensure that the following requirements are met:
 - C.3.13.11.1 Wiring must not be exposed to throw-offs from tires.
 - <u>C.3.13.11.2</u> Wires must not be routed closer than 6 inches to exhaust components or other heat sources, unless they are shielded.
 - C.3.13.11.3 Wires must not come in contact with moving parts.
 - <u>C.3.13.11.4</u> Wire runs that may be subjected to ice and snow buildup require additional clamping, supports or protection.
 - <u>C.3.13.11.5</u> Wires and wire hamesses must not be routed through holes or across sharp edges without protection from being chafed or cut.
 - <u>C.3.13.11.6</u> Wires must be of sufficient length to prevent stretching, distortion, or disconnecting. Extra wire must be neatly bundled and tied off.
- <u>C.3.13.12</u> All added equipment and switches must be deactivated by the ignition switch, except for those items required by law to be active.
- <u>C.3.13.13</u> Wire runs and color must be continuous and terminate at weather proof junction boxes. Wire color must be continuous for the length of each wire.
- C.3.13.14 Positive (hot), electrical points including ring poles and power rails must be boxed in, covered, or otherwise protected to prevent accidental short or overload from incidental contact.

<u>C.3.13.15</u> Wire size and length shall be evaluated per SAE J2202 to determine maximum amperage rating and appropriate circuit breakers installed to prevent overload conditions. Minimum wire size for vendor installed terminal to terminal wiring must be 14 AWG unless provided as a stock factory component.

C.3.14 COLOR AND FINISH:

- <u>C.3.14.1</u> The Unit must be painted as specified in **SECTION C.4 Detailed Specifications**. No additional stripes or styling enhancements are permitted.
- <u>C.3.14.2 Sharp corners and Edges</u>: Cut metals and other materials must have rounded corners and edges to prevent injury to personnel.
- <u>C.3.14.3 Surface Preparation</u>: All welding slag and scale must be removed and surfaces must be clean and free of dirt and grease prior to painting.
- C.3.14.4 Paint application to be in an OSHA approved facility. Painting of metal surfaces must conform to best industry practices and must provide a well-bonded surface of paint. Orange peel and runs are not acceptable. Metals must not be left bare. ID plates, tags, part numbers, serial numbers, etc. must not be painted.
- C.3.14.5 All paint must be lead free.

C.3.15 GENERAL WELDING REQUIREMENTS:

<u>C.3.15.1</u> Distortion of assembled parts is not acceptable. All welds must have proper penetration and be relatively uniform in appearance. All welds must provide a metal-to-metal bond, with adequate penetration using proper flux or welding materials. Downhill welds are not acceptable for ten gauge or thicker material, unless unavoidable using best industry practices. If downhill welds are used, they must have proper penetration.

C.3.15.2 Some characteristics of an unacceptable weld are the following:

CRACKS	UNDERCUT	OVERLAP
EXCESSIVE	SLAG ENTRAPMENT	INADEQUATE
SPLATTER		PENETRATION
DISTORTION	BLOW-HOLES	INCLUSIONS
POROSITY	CONCAVE OF	
	CONVEX	

<u>C.3.15.3</u> <u>Body Fillers</u>: The covering of welds with body fillers or similar practice is not acceptable.

C.3.16 AIR SYSTEMS:

C.3.16.1 Leaks: Air leaks are not acceptable.

- C.3.16.2 Air lines: All air lines must be DOT air brake lines.
- **C.3.16.3** Air systems interface: The air system interface with air brake systems must have appropriate isolation valves.
- <u>C.3.16.4 Hose Routing</u>: Hose routing must be clamped or tied to supporting structures at approximately 20 inch intervals.
- <u>C.3.16.5</u> The bend radius of air lines must not be less than the manufacturer's recommended minimum.
- <u>C.3.16.6</u> Air lines must not be routed closer than 6 inches to exhaust components or other heat sources, unless they are shielded.
- C.3.16.7 Air lines must not come in contact with moving parts.
- <u>C.3.16.8</u> Air lines must not be routed through holes or across sharp edges without protection from being chafed or cut.
- C.3.16.9 Air lines routing must be so that local low points (water traps) are minimized.
- C.3.16.10 Hoses must be of sufficient length to prevent stretching, distortion, or disconnecting. Extra hose must be neatly bundled and tied off.
- <u>C.3.17</u> OPERATOR(s) EQUIPMENT INTERFACE: The operator(s) stations(s), including safety devices, controls, gauges and visibility, must be configured for operators with physical dimensions as specified in SAE J833 (medium build).
 - <u>C.3.17.1 Control Locations</u>: All controls at an operator's station must be located within easy reach of an operator wearing a seat belt or other required safety device. The controls are to be located and spaced to allow for easy operation. Control location must not hamper or interfere with other control applications.
 - <u>C.3.17.2</u> <u>Instrumentation Visibility</u>: Instrumentation, gauges, warning lights, etc., must be sized and located so they are easily read.
 - <u>C.3.17.3 Work Area Visibility</u>: Visibility of the work area, road, etc., must be unobstructed, and provide for safe equipment operation.

C.4 DETAILED SPECIFICATIONS:

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS: A response to each specification statement is required where a line is provided. If requested optional equipment is available, supply additional information as requested. FAILURE TO CONFORM TO THE SPECIFICATION MAY RESULT IN BID REJECTION.

<u>C.4.0 SCOPE</u> - This specification describes compactors in the following weight classes and configurations that will be used in pavement repair operations including chip seals, hot and cold mix asphalt paving operations throughout the State of Oregon in all types of weather conditions. The majority of operation will be while in the static mode.

- Category 1, Low profile single drum and tire articulated vibratory compactor with hydrostatic drive and operating weight of between two and four (2 and 4) tons.
- Category 2, Low profile tandem drum (narrow drum) articulated vibratory compactor with hydrostatic drive and operating weight of between two and three (2 and 3) tons.
- Category 3, Low profile tandem drum (wide drum) articulated vibratory compactor with hydrostatic drive and operating weight of between two and four (2 and 4) tons.
- Category 4, Low profile tandem drum articulated vibratory compactor with hydrostatic drive and operating weight of between five and eight (5 and 8) tons.
- Category 5, Low profile tandem drum articulated vibratory compactor with hydrostatic drive and operating weight of between ten and twelve (10 and 12) tons.
- Category 6, Pneumatic tire compactor with hydrostatic drive and operating weight of ten (10) tons or approximately twenty eight hundred (2800) pounds per square inch per tire depending on ballast type.
- <u>C.4.1 COMMON SPECIFICATIONS</u> The following specifications will apply to compactors in all categories:
 - <u>C.4.1.1</u> The compactors must be painted the manufactures standard color, or if available at no charge, painted an environmental safety yellow.
 - **C.4.1.2** The compactors must be powered by a diesel fueled, four-stroke, three (3) or four (4) cylinder engine.
 - <u>C.4.1.3</u> Engines must be capable of running on bio diesel blends of up to B20, and meet current Tier 3 or interim Tier 4 emission standards.
 - C.4.1.4 The cooling systems for the engine, hydraulic and hydrostatic systems must provide proper cooling with an ambient temperature range from -20°F to +120°F.
 - <u>C.4.1.5</u> The filters provided must include at a minimum; fuel filter with water separator, engine, hydraulic and hydrostatic systems. Air cleaner, dual element type, with a Turbo II or equal precleaner, with a restriction gauge or light on or visible from operator station. See additional filter requirements in Section 3.7 FILTERS.
 - <u>C.4.1.6</u> The compactors must have a hydrostatic type transmission providing infinitely variable speed in both directions from 0 to the maximum speed in MPH called for in category. Travel direction and speed must be controlled by a single lever.
 - <u>C.4.1.7</u> The drive system must be on both drums of tandem compactors. Drums must be smooth finish, have a chamfered edge and have a minimum oscillation of +/-10°. All drums must be equipped with filtered water spray system and cocoa mats. A timed water system that maintains water on drums may be substituted on units where cocoa mats are unavailable.

- C.4.1.8 All drums and tires must have spring loaded or fully adjustable scrapers.
- **C.4.1.9** On pneumatic tire units, each tire must have its own water spray nozzle.
- **C.4.1.10** All water tanks must be a corrosion resistant poly type with a provision for draining to prevent freeze damage.
- C.4.1.11 All compactors must have a full power steering system with a steering wheel (no joystick).
- C.4.1.12 All compactors must be equipped with ROPS and seat belt.
- C.4.1.13 All compactors must be equipped with sun canopies, if available.
- C.4.1.14 All compactors must be equipped with both "road" and "work" lights, if available.
- <u>C.4.1.15</u> All compactors must include all necessary gauges and instruments including an hour meter for operation.
- **C.4.1.16** All compactors must be equipped with all anti-vandal protection available.
- <u>C.4.1.17</u> The brake system must be a dynamic braking action inherent in the hydrostatic drive system. Compactors must also be equipped with a spring applied / hydraulically released parking brake.
- C.4.1.18 All drum compactors must be capable of either dual or variable frequency in the vibratory mode of operation and be equipped with automatic vibration stop when in neutral.
- <u>C.4.1.19</u> Overall compactor height must not exceed 130 inches as measured to the top of the ROPS on any compactor.

C.4.2 ADDITIONAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR CATEGORY 1

- <u>C.4.2.1</u> The front drum must be between 50 and 54 inches in width. The rear must have 4 pneumatic tires.
- **C.4.2.2** Must have a top speed of at least 6 miles per hour in either direction.
- C.4.2.3 Must have a minimum fuel capacity of 15 gallons.
- **C.4.2.4** Engine must develop a minimum of 44 net SAE J1349 horsepower.
- C.4.2.5 Overall width must not exceed 60 inches.
- C.4.2.6 Overall length must not exceed 124 inches.
- **C.4.2.7** Must have a minimum curb clearance of 19 inches.
- C.4.2.8 Must have minimum vibration amplitude of 7000 pounds of centrifugal force.

C.4.3 ADDITIONAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR CATEGORY 2

- C.4.3.1 The front and rear drums must be between 38 and 40 inches in width.
- C.4.3.2 Must have a top speed of at least 4 miles per hour in either direction.
- C.4.3.3 Must have a minimum fuel capacity of 10 gallons.
- **C.4.3.4** Engine must develop a minimum of 27 net SAE J1349 horsepower.
- C.4.3.5 Overall width must not exceed 44 inches.
- C.4.3.6 Overall length must not exceed 104 inches.
- C.4.3.7 Must have a minimum curb clearance of 19 inches.
- C.4.3.8 Must have minimum vibration amplitude of 4500 pounds of centrifugal force.

C.4.4 ADDITIONAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR CATEGORY 3

- C.4.4.1 The front and rear drums must be between 50 and 54 inches in width.
- C.4.4.2 Must have a top speed of at least 6 miles per hour in either direction.
- C.4.4.3 Must have a minimum fuel capacity of 15 gallons.
- **C.4.4.4** Engine must develop a minimum of 44 net SAE J1349 horsepower.
- C.4.4.5 Overall width must not exceed 60 inches.
- C.4.4.6 Overall length must not exceed 124 inches.
- C.4.4.7 Must have a minimum curb clearance of 19 inches.
- C.4.4.8 Must have minimum vibration amplitude of 7000 pounds of centrifugal force.

C.4.5 ADDITIONAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR CATEGORY 4

- **C.4.5.1** The front and rear drums must be between 56 and 60 inches in width.
- C.4.5.2 Must have a top speed of at least 6 miles per hour in either direction.
- **C.4.5.3** Must have a minimum fuel capacity of 35 gallons.
- **C.4.5.4** Engine must develop a minimum of 78 net SAE J1349 horsepower.
- C.4.5.5 Overall width must not exceed 68 inches.

- C.4.5.6 Overall length must not exceed 177 inches.
- C.4.5.7 Must have a minimum curb clearance of 22 inches.
- C.4.5.8 Must have minimum vibration amplitude of 6500 pounds of centrifugal force.

C.4.6 ADDITIONAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR CATEGORY 5

- C.4.6.1 The front and rear drums must be between 66 and 69 inches in width.
- C.4.6.2 Must have a top speed of at least 6 miles per hour in either direction.
- C.4.6.3 Must have a minimum fuel capacity of 40 gallons.
- C.4.6.4 Engine must develop a minimum of 125 net SAE J1349 horsepower.
- C.4.6.5 Overall width must not exceed 88 inches.
- C.4.6.6 Overall length must not exceed 201 inches.
- C.4.6.7 Must have a minimum curb clearance of 17 inches.
- C.4.6.8 Must have minimum vibration amplitude of 5500 pounds of centrifugal force.

C.4.7 ADDITIONAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR CATEGORY 6

- <u>C.4.7.1</u> Compactor must be a 9 pneumatic tire configuration type, 4 on one axle and 5 on the other. Minimum tire oscillation must be +/- 3° and 1/2 inch overlap.
- C.4.7.2 Tires must be 7.50 x 15 inch, 12 ply with smooth tread.
- C.4.7.3 Must have a top speed of at least 14 miles per hour in either direction.
- **C.4.7.4** Must have a minimum fuel capacity of 27 gallons.
- C.4.7.5 Engine must develop a minimum of 80 net SAE J1349 horsepower.
- C.4.7.6 Must have minimum rolling compaction width of 68 inches.
- C.4.7.7 Overall width must not exceed 78 inches.
- C.4.7.8 Overall length must not exceed 170 inches.
- C.4.7.9 Must have a minimum curb clearance of 10 inches.
- C.4.7.10 Ballast compartments must total 120 cubic feet, at a minimum.

C.5. DELIVERY:

C.5.1 DELIVERY TIMELINE REQUIRED BY ODOT: 120 calendar days from date of order. Early delivery is acceptable and encouraged.

C.5.2 DELIVERY TIMELINE PROPOSED BY BIDDER: 120 calendar days from date of order.

<u>C.5.2.1</u> Failure to insert a delivery date proposal indicates a Contractor commitment to deliver within the time specified in **SECTION C.5.1**. Submittal of proposed delivery timelines later than those required may result in Bid rejection. Submittal of delivery timelines providing for earlier delivery than required by ODOT binds the Bidder, should it be awarded the Contract.

C.5.2.2 If the apparent low Bidder is not the primary equipment manufacturer, Bidder shall provide ODOT with confirmation from the manufacturer, in writing, of manufacturer's ability to meet the delivery timeline proposed by Bidder in this SECTION C.5.2. Manufacturer's written confirmation must be submitted to the ODOT Procurement Office within 7 calendar days of notification of Intent to Award. Failure to present the required document within 7 calendar days will delay issuance of any purchase order(s) and may be grounds for bid rejection.

IS BIDDER THE PRIMARY EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURER? (circle one): YES NO

<u>C.5.3 MANUFACTURING UPDATES</u>: The Contractor shall provide to ODOT monthly written status reports summarizing the manufacturing progress of all equipment on order. Written manufacturing status reports must be submitted to ODOT by the 15th day of each month, to begin the month following receipt of order. Written manufacturing status reports must be submitted to the attention of the ODOT Fleet Operations Purchasing Coordinator as follows:

If by U.S. Mail:

Operations Purchasing Coordinator ODOT Fleet Operations 455 Airport Road, SE Building K Salem, OR 97301-5348

If by Facsimile: (503) 986-2864 Attn: Operations Purchasing Coordinator

Contractor agrees that time is of the essence for Contractor's performance obligations under the Contract. The Contractor shall notify ODOT immediately, in writing, if at any time Contractor finds that delivery cannot be completed as required. Upon receipt of such notice from the Contractor or upon Contractor's failure to deliver Goods within the timeline as specified, ODOT reserves the right to cancel the order and make the purchase from another source, without further obligation to the Contractor.

- C.5.4 DELIVERY COMPONENTS: The following items (collectively referred to as "Delivery Components") must be included in the Bid price, and must be delivered with the Unit.
 - <u>C.5.4.1</u> A manufacturer's statement of origin or vehicle title signed off to Oregon Department of Transportation.
 - C.5.4.2 A copy of all product information and instructions supplied by the manufacturer.

- C.5.4.3 Data sheets (furnished by ODOT), filled out with applicable data.
- C.5.4.4 Three (3) sets of keys for all locks.
- C.5.4.5 Orders for multiple Units must be keyed alike.
- C.5.4.6 All manufacturer's warranties, evidencing proper transfer to the State.
- <u>C.5.4.7</u> An extra filter set consisting of all filters used on the Unit (oil, hydraulic, air, water, fuel, etc.), each of which must be individually packaged and identified. The filter set must be packaged as a group in appropriately-sized 5 mil., minimum, plastic water proof bags or box. Supply filters in original packaging when possible. Extra filter set must include filters for cab air, air intakes, air vents and transmission, if applicable.

C.5.4.8 RESERVED

- <u>C.5.4.9</u> Contractor shall provide 1 copy of current <u>operator's manual</u> and all other operator information and instructions available from the manufacturer with each unit ordered.
- <u>C.5.4.10</u> Contractor shall provide 1 copy of current <u>shop repair manual</u>, including electrical and hydraulic schematic diagrams, covering all systems, components, and optional equipment with each unit ordered.
- <u>C.5.4.11</u> Contractor shall supply 1 copy of the current <u>parts catalog</u> covering all components and optional equipment available from the manufacturer with each unit ordered. ("All components" means the primary Unit and all auxiliary equipment and components added to the Unit to meet the Specifications set forth in the ITB.)
- C.5.4.12 Shop repair manuals and parts catalogs may be combined.
- <u>C.5.4.13</u> Operator manuals provided must be in hard copy format only. Service, parts and repair manuals may be provided in hard copy, CD ROM or DVD format.
- C.5.4.14 All hard copy manuals and catalogs must be individually assembled and bound.
- <u>C.5.4.15</u> Manuals (Model Upgrades): In the event the manufacturer upgrades the models bid herein during the Contract term, and new manuals are issued, Contractor shall provide replacement upgrade materials in quantities as listed above.
- **C.5.4.16** Additional manual quantities must be bid as separate line items.
- <u>C.6 TRAINING</u>: Bidder shall bid the Services of a qualified factory service representative(s) for the following training:
 - <u>C.6.1</u> Training of ODOT mechanics in major maintenance, preventive maintenance, adjustment and repair of the Unit(s). Estimated number of hours required is 2. Bidders shall bid training at an hourly rate and invoice separately at actual hours. If training is not invoiced separately, payment may be held until all items (including equipment) on invoice have been received, approved and released.

- <u>C.6.2</u> Training of ODOT operators in safe operation and preventive maintenance of the Unit(s). Estimated number of hours required is 2. Bidders shall bid training at an hourly rate and invoice separately at actual hours.
- C.6.3 Training will be held in Salem, Bend and LaGrande, OR.
- <u>C.6.4</u> All costs of training, including but not limited to, factory service representatives' salaries and fees, travel, lodging, meals, training/demonstration materials, etc. must be included in the Bid pricing.
- <u>C.6.5</u> A training syllabus covering all required training subjects must be made available after Contract execution and must be provided upon request from ODOT.
- **C.6.6** Mechanics and Operators training may be combined into a single four hour session.

SECTION D - FINAL BID PRICING SECTION

- <u>D.1 INSTRUCTIONS</u>: Bidders must submit all pricing information as instructed or the Bid may be rejected. ODOT makes no representation or guarantee whatsoever as to the amount or type of purchases to be made under this Contract. All estimated quantities listed in this ITB, including those listed in this **SECTION D PRICING PROPOSAL** are estimates of the quantities that may be ordered by ODOT during the initial term of the **Price Agreement**.
- **D.2 MANDATORY BID ITEMS:** Bid Items 1 through 6 as available (at least one category MUST be bid in entirety).
- <u>D.3 OPTIONAL BID ITEMS</u>: Other options and additional accessories may be offered. If offered, Bidder should attach a list with description, part/model number, price, lead time and "intended for use on" model numbers for each item. Cost differences, if any, associated with each alternative should be itemized. Options will not be approved prior to Bid Closing.

If any of the items below are included with the base Unit and there is no cost, indicate by writing the word "included" in the Total Price column.

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	EST. QTY.	UNIT	TOTAL PRICE
1.	Category 1 rollers Make and Model Provided: Saugi エル320	1	EA	\$ 37,638.00
		4	EA	• 🚓
1.1	Additional Repair Manual	1	EA	\$
1.2	Additional Parts Manual	1	EA	<u>\$ + - </u>
1.3	Additional Operators Manual	1	EA	\$ 0
1.4	Operator Training	2	HRS	\$
1.5	Mechanics Training	2	HRS	\$ -
1.6	Combined Mechanics and Operator Training	4	HRS	\$ -
	TOTAL BID FOR CATEGORY 1			\$ 37,638.00

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	EST. QTY.	UNIT	TOTAL PRICE
2.	Category 2 rollers Make and Model Provided: 	1	EA	\$31,915.00
2.1	Additional Repair Manual	1	EA	\$
2.2	Additional Parts Manual	1_	EA	\$ 0
2.3	Additional Operators Manual	1	EA	\$ 0
2.4	Operator Training	2	HRS	\$ 0
2.5	Mechanics Training	2	HRS	<u>\$ +</u>
2.6	Combined Mechanics and Operator Training	4	HRS	<u>\$ +</u>
	TOTAL BID FOR CATEGORY 2			\$ 31,955.00
3.	Category 3 rollers Make and Model Provided: Sakai ちいるる	1	EĄ	\$ 36,757.00
3.1	Additional Repair Manual	1 _	<u>EA</u>	<u>\$ </u>
3.2	Additional Parts Manual	1.	EA .	\$ 0
3.3	Additional Operators Manual	11	EA	<u> </u>
3.4	Operator Training	2	HRS	<u>\$</u>
3.5	Mechanics Training	2	HRS	<u>\$</u>
3.6	Combined Mechanics and Operator Training	4	HRS	\$ +
	TOTAL BID FOR CATEGORY 3			\$ 36752.00

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	EST. QTY.	UNIT	TOTAL PRICE
4.	Category 4 rollers Make and Model Provided: Sakai SW65 2	1	EA	\$ 86, 293.00
4.1	Additional Repair Manual	1_	EA	\$ -0-
4.2	Additional Parts Manual	1	EA	\$ 0
4.3	Additional Operators Manual	1	EA	<u>\$ </u>
4.4	Operator Training	_2	HR	<u>\$ \(\in \)</u>
4.5	Mechanics Training	2	HR	\$
4.6	Combined Mechanics and Operator Training	4	HR	\$
	TOTAL BID FOR CATEGORY 4		· · · · ·	\$ 86,293.00
5.	Category 5 rollers Make and Model Provided: 	1	EA	\$ 99,364.00
5.1	Additional Repair Manual	1	_ EA	<u>\$ + - </u>
5.2	Additional Parts Manual	· 1	EA	<u>\$ + - </u>
5.3	Additional Operators Manual	1	EA	<u>\$</u>
5.4	Operator Training	2	HRS	<u>\$ + - </u>
5.5	Mechanics Training	2	HRS	<u>\$</u>
5.6	Combined Mechanics and Operator Training	4	HRS	\$
	TOTAL BID FOR CATEGORY 5			\$ 99.364.00

Page 37

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	EST. QTY.	UNIT	TOTAL PRICE
6.	Category 6 rollers Make and Model Provided:	1	EA	\$ NO BID
6.1	Additional Repair Manual	1	EA	\$ 0
6.2	Additional Parts Manual	1	EA	\$ 0
6.3	Additional Operators Manual	1	EA	\$
6.4	Operator Training	2	HRS	<u>\$</u>
6.5	Mechanics Training	2	HRS	\$ -
6.6	Combined Mechanics and Operator Training	4	HRS	<u>\$ + </u>
	TOTAL BID FOR CATEGORY 6			\$ NO BID

SECTION E - STANDARD PRICE AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- E.1 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: The Contract consists of (a) ITB SECTION C Specifications; (b) ITB SECTION D Bid Pricing Section; (c) ITB SECTION E Standard Contract Terms and Conditions; (d) ITB SECTION F Special Contract Terms and Conditions, if any; (e) ITB SECTION G Insurance; (f) ITB SECTIONS J THROUGH P; (g) the Bid; (h) Purchase Orders; and (i) all Contract addendum and amendments.
- <u>E.2 ORDER OF PRECEDENCE</u>: Whenever possible, all terms and conditions are to be harmonized. However, in the event of a conflict, the Contract is interpreted utilizing the following order of precedence: (a) Contract amendments; (b) the Special Price Agreement Terms and Conditions, if any; (c) these Standard Price Agreement Terms and Conditions; (d) the Specifications; (e) Drawings; (f) Purchase Order(s); and (g) the Bid. Provided, however, if a particular term is required by law, it takes precedence over any conflicting terms. For purposes of this **SECTION E.2**, to "take precedence" means to supersede. "Order of precedence" refers to the order in which conflicting Contract provisions supersede each other.
- E.3 TERM OF PRICE AGREEMENT: The initial term of the Price Agreement is for 1 year, beginning on the date the Price Agreement is awarded. Upon concurrence of the parties, the Price Agreement may be extended for additional terms ("Extension Terms"). Provided, however, that the maximum duration of the Price Agreement, including all extensions, must not extend beyond 6 years.
- **E.4 EXTENSIONS:** ODOT will notify Contractor in writing of ODOT's intent to extend the Price Agreement ("Renewal Notice") at least 30 days prior to the expiration of the then-current term. If Contractor consents to the extension, it shall sign and return the Renewal Notice to ODOT within the time period specified therein. If Contractor does not consent, the Price Agreement expires according to its terms, unless earlier terminated.
- <u>E.5 PRICE ADJUSTMENTS</u>: Contractor may seek a Unit price increase reflecting increased operating or raw material costs or both ("Production Costs") for a Term by submitting a written request to ODOT, including all appropriate price documentation. If approved, the Unit price increase will be firm for the duration of the Term. Provided, however, no more than 1 Unit price increase is allowed during any twelve-month period regardless of the number of Extension Terms entered into during that time.
 - E.5.1 Notwithstanding SECTION D.3, the maximum percentage increase based upon increased Production Costs must not exceed the percentage of increase in manufacturer's then current list price over the prior year's list price.
 - <u>E.5.2</u> ODOT reserves the right in its sole discretion to determine whether to agree to a price increase for a Term. It further reserves the right to require additional documentation, or to independently verify the basis for and validity of any proposed price increase utilizing its internal price review and analysis protocols. ODOT may accept or reject a requested increase or offer a lesser amount.
 - <u>E.5.3</u> In the event ODOT offers some compromise amount or rejects the requested price increase, Contractor may elect to accept the Term under those conditions, or allow the Price Agreement to expire. However, Contractor has no right to receive, or claim for failure to receive, a price increase for any Term.
- E.6 ONE MONTH EXTENSION OPTION: Notwithstanding the foregoing SECTIONS E.3 through E.5, ODOT reserves the right in its sole discretion to extend the Price Agreement for a maximum of 1 calendar month beyond any term. ODOT will notify Contractor in writing of the 1-month extension prior to the expiration of the then-

current term. Price adjustments are not available for 1-month extensions obtained pursuant to this **SECTION E.6**. Consecutive 1-month extensions under this Section are also not allowed.

E.7 GOODS AND SERVICES TO BE FURNISHED: During the term of the Contract, Contractor agrees to deliver all Goods and provide all services ordered by ODOT in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract.

E.8 PURCHASE ORDERS: ODOT will order Goods, if any by Purchase Order. Contractor shall not accept any Purchase Order that does not comply with the following requirements:

<u>E.8.1</u> ODOT will use the ODOT-approved Purchase Order form(s) to order Goods under the Contract. Purchase Orders will incorporate the Contract by reference, and identify the Contract number, the ITB number, and Bid item number(s) of the Unit(s) and options ordered. However, no language in a Purchase Order submitted will vary, amend, modify, or add terms or conditions to the Contract. Operative provisions in Purchase Orders will be limited to: designation of ODOT and its authorized representative; identification of Goods and order quantities; optional Services, equipment and accessories offered under the terms of the Contract; delivery schedules in accordance with the terms of the Contract; and Delivery Destination and invoicing address.

E.8.2 MANDATORY PURCHASE ORDER LANGUAGE:

THIS PURCHASE IS PLACED AGAINST ODOT PRICE AGREEMENT # [INSERT PRICE AGREEMENT #]. THE PRICE AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS (T'S & C'S) AND SPECIAL PRICE AGREEMENT T'S & C'S CONTAINED IN THE PRICE AGREEMENT APPLY TO THIS PURCHASE AND TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER ALL OTHER CONFLICTING T'S & C'S, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED.

E.8.3 In the event a court of competent jurisdiction determines that the Purchase Order constitutes an offer rather than an acceptance, then acceptance by Contractor shall be limited to the terms of the Contract as stipulated in the ITB.

E.9 SHIPPING/DELIVERY DESTINATION: Goods, including all Delivery Components, must be delivered F.O.B. destination to the address or location specified in the Purchase Order ("Delivery Destination"), together with all warranty documentation, inspection reports, and certifications, where applicable, unless specified otherwise in the Contract. Responsibility and liability for loss or damage remains with Contractor until final inspection and acceptance.

E.10 DELIVERY DATE REQUIRED BY ODOT: Delivery must be completed, including all Back Orders, no later than 120 days after receipt of Purchase Order. All shipping and handling charges are to be paid by Contractor, unless specified otherwise in the Contract.

<u>E.10.1</u> The Contractor shall notify ODOT, in writing, within 5 business days of receipt of Purchase Order if delivery cannot be completed as required. Upon receipt of such notice from the Contractor, ODOT reserves the right to cancel the order and make the purchase from another source, without further obligation to the Contractor.

<u>E.11 DELIVERY TIME</u>: Delivery is accepted Monday through Friday, excluding weekends or legal holidays as recognized by the State. Delivery hours are 7:30 AM to 3:00 PM. Any exceptions to this time frame are at the discretion of ODOT.

Page 40

<u>E.12 DAMAGED SHIPMENT</u>: It is the Contractor's sole responsibility to insure that the shipment arrives at its destination undamaged. If there is any damage to goods upon delivery, ODOT reserves the right to return the shipment in whole or in part at the Contractor's expense. If the Contractor is unable to supply a replacement shipment within the allotted period of time (Refer to Section **C.5**), ODOT may cancel the order in whole or in part and purchase needed items from another source.

E.13 INSPECTIONS/ACCEPTANCE:

- **E.13.1 PRE-DELIVERY INSPECTION:** ODOT may request to have a pre-delivery inspection at Contractor's location to insure specification compliance PRIOR TO DELIVERY.
- <u>E.13.2</u> ODOT may reject any shipment or cancel any Purchase Order which does not meet all of the requirements of the specifications and warranties. ODOT will have 21 calendar days from date of delivery of the entire order within which to inspect and accept or reject the Goods. If the Goods are rejected, ODOT will provide Contractor with written notification of rejection. Notice of rejection will include itemization of apparent defects, including but not limited to (i) discrepancies between the Goods and the applicable Specifications or warranties (including variance from sample characteristics where samples or prototypes have been provided), and (ii) other apparent defects in design, materials, or manufacture, or (iii) otherwise nonconforming Goods (including late delivery). Notice of rejection will also indicate whether cure will be allowed.
- **E.13.3 CURE:** If ODOT elects to allow cure, Contractor shall complete cure within 14 calendar days of date of notice of rejection and opportunity to cure (the "Cure Period"). If a missing part, component, or accessory cannot be provided and installed within 14 calendar days, ODOT will have the right to buy the item or part from another source and bill the Contractor or deduct the cost from Contractor's invoice for the Goods, including costs of installation. With regard to defective Goods, ODOT may elect to have the Contractor deliver substitute Goods within the Cure Period that comply with the Contract Specifications and warranties. Failure to complete cure within the Cure Period may constitute an event of default under **SECTION E.**
- E.13.4 REMOVAL/REIMBURSEMENT: If the Goods are rejected or acceptance is revoked, the Contractor shall refund any Contract payments that have been made with regard to such Goods, and, at Contractor's sole cost and expense, remove the Goods within 14 calendar days of date of notice of rejection or revocation of acceptance. Contractor shall return all Agency owned items to Agency in like condition initially received.

Nothing in this SECTION E.13 in any way affects or limits ODOTs rights as buyer under UCC, including the rights and remedies relating to rejection under ORS 72.6020 and revocation of acceptance under ORS 72.6080.

E.13.5 PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS: Agency may conduct performance evaluation(s) on the selected Contractor(s) during the Contract term. Any completed evaluations will be compiled and maintained by Agency, and become a written record of Contractor's performance. Agency also may maintain as part of that written record information obtained from Contractor during an exit interview following Contract expiration or termination. Upon request, Agency will provide copies of any performance evaluation documentation to the affected Contractor and third parties, unless the requested material is lawfully exempt from disclosure.

Agency may, at its sole discretion, use performance evaluation findings and conclusions in any way deemed necessary by Agency, including, but not limited to, determining eligibility for future contract assignments, and as a criterion of selection for future Agency contracts.

<u>E.14 PAYMENT; OVERDUE ACCOUNT CHARGES</u>: Payment is due and owing no later than 30 days from date of acceptance or expiration of the inspection and acceptance period, whichever occurs first. Contractor may only assess overdue account charges, in accordance with the provisions of ORS 293.462, up to a maximum rate of 2/3 percent per month (up to 8 percent per annum) starting 45 days from the date of acceptance or expiration of the inspection and acceptance period, whichever occurs first.

E.15 PAYMENT ADDRESS: Payment will be sent to Contractor at the address specified in the invoice.

<u>E.16 INVOICES</u>: Contractor shall invoice ODOT upon delivery of the entire order. Training must be invoiced separately at actual hours after training is completed. Each invoice must include the Contract and applicable Purchase Order number. All items included on a single invoice must be delivered, inspected, approved and released prior to payment. Separate invoices may be sent for each unit to facilitate release of invoice payment. Invoices must be sent to the Fleet Inspector address specified in the Purchase Order.

E.17 TRAINING: Training costs must be itemized separately (See Table in Section D).

E.18 MOST FAVORABLE PRICES AND TERMS: Contractor represents that all prices, terms and benefits offered by Contractor are equal to or better than the equivalent prices, terms and benefits being offered by Contractor to any other state or local government unit or commercial customer.

<u>E.18.1</u> Should Contractor, during the term of the Contract, enter into any Contract, agreement or arrangement that provides lower prices, more favorable terms or greater benefits to any other such government unit or commercial customer, the Contract is thereupon deemed amended to provide the same price or prices, terms and benefits to ODOT. This provision applies to comparable Goods and services, and to purchase volumes by ODOT that are not less than the purchase volumes of the government unit or commercial customer that has received the lower prices, greater benefits or more favorable terms.

<u>E.18.2</u> Donations of Goods or services to charitable, nonprofit or government entities, if the donations are recognized as such and are deductible under the federal Internal Revenue Code, are not considered contracts, agreements, sales or arrangements with other government units or commercial customers that call for the application of this paragraph.

E.19 WARRANTIES:

E.19.1 AUTHORITY; BINDING OBLIGATION: Contractor represents and warrants that Contractor has the power and authority to enter into and perform the Contract, and that the Contract, when executed and delivered, is a valid and binding obligation of Contractor enforceable in accordance with its terms.

E.19.2 WARRANTY ON MATERIALS, DESIGN, MANUFACTURE: Contractor warrants that all Goods are new, unused, current production models, fit for their intended purpose, and free from defects in materials, design, and manufacture for the duration of the applicable manufacturer warranty periods, any portion of the standard warranty on any of the components that exceed these requirements apply. Where Specifications have been made a part of the ITB, Contractor further warrants that all Goods

conform to the Specifications and meet or exceed safety and quality standards established in the Contract.

- **E.19.3 WARRANTY ON SERVICE STANDARDS:** Contractor warrants that all Services, where provided, are in accordance with the best commercial practice, by properly licensed or certified individuals, and that only materials and workmanship of good quality are used in the performance of the Contract.
- <u>E.19.4 WARRANTY OF SAFETY AND HEALTH REQUIREMENTS</u>: Contractor warrants that the Goods comply with all applicable federal and State health and safety standards, including but not limited to, Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) and Oregon Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OROSHA).
- **E.19.5 MANUFACTURER WARRANTIES:** Contractor shall have all manufacturer warranties covering the Goods and component parts, where applicable, transferred to ODOT at time of delivery at no charge.
- **E.19.6 WARRANTY OF TITLE:** Contractor warrants that all Goods are free and clear of any liens or encumbrances, that Contractor has full legal title to the Goods, and that no other person has any right, title or interest in the Goods which are superior to or infringe upon the rights granted to ODOT hereunder.
- E.19.7 WARRANTIES CUMULATIVE: The warranties set forth in this SECTION E.19 are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other warranties provided in the Contract. All warranties provided in the Contract are cumulative, and shall be interpreted expansively so as to afford ODOT the broadest warranty protection available.
- E.19.8 BASIC WARRANTY: The basic warranty on the Rollers must be for a minimum period of 1 year or 500 hours which ever is greater. The basic warranty on all other components must be for a minimum period of 1 year. Any portions of the standard warranty on any of the components that exceed these requirements apply. See Section E.19.9 CONTRACTOR WARRANTY PERIODS for additional details.
 - **E.19.8.1** The warranty excludes consumables such as lamps, lights, belts, ground engagement tools, batteries and tires, except as warranted by the manufacturer of said items. It also excludes damage to the unit due to accident, misuse, abuse, vandalism or operator or maintenance neglect.
 - <u>E.19.8.2</u> With prior Contractor approval and if the unit is urgently needed, the State may elect to have equipment transported by ODOT to the Contractor's authorized repair center for warranty work. The Contractor shall reimburse ODOT for all costs thereof.
 - **E.19.8.3** The Contractor shall be responsible for all warranty adjustment expenses. Services / costs in excess of published flat rate may be negotiated. Applicable published flat rates must be provided to ODOT prior to warranty work
 - <u>E.19.8.4</u> If the Contractor is unable to furnish warranty repair within 14 calendar days, the Contractor shall furnish a replacement Unit until the warranty repair is completed and the repaired Unit is returned to ODOT.
- **E.19.9 CONTRACTOR WARRANTY PERIODS**: Warranty periods for Contractor's warranties on materials, design, and manufacture will not start until the date the Unit is actually put into service, as established by ODOT's business records.

E.19.10 WARRANTY COMPUTER SOFTWARE: Contractor warrants that the engine diagnostic software does not infringe, nor ODOT's use of such software infringe, any license, copyright, patent, trade secret, or other propnetary right of any third party, and Contractor shall provide indemnification to ODOT against any such infringement of third party rights.

<u>E.19.11 WARRANTY REPAIRS</u>: If any Unit or component thereof should prove defective in workmanship, design, or materials during the relevant warranty period, the manufacturer or Contractor shall promptly repair or replace the Unit or component ("Warranty Repairs") at no cost to the State, including parts, labor, and expenses of any kind (transportation and shipping costs, insurance, meals, accommodations, travel time, mileage, etc., to job sites) ("Warranty Costs"). Contractor shall be responsible for completing all necessary Warranty Repairs within 48 hours of notice from ODOT. Such notice may be made by phone, fax, e-mail or other means reasonably calculated to reach Contractor. All warranty repair work will conform to ODOT workmanship standards as identified in Section C.3. Mutually agreeable alternative arrangements may be made prior to warranty work.

<u>E.19.11.1 ODOT REPAIR OPTION</u>: With Contractor's prior approval, not to be unreasonably withheld, ODOT may perform Warranty Repairs. In such case, ODOT will hold the failed parts for the Contractor's inspection, together with sufficient documentation to verify the repairs. Contractor shall reimburse ODOT for all Warranty Costs incurred by ODOT in making such repairs.

E.19.11.2 EMERGENCY REPAIRS: In an emergency, if the Contractor is unable to furnish a service representative and parts to the on-site location of a Unit within the time frame required by ODOT under the circumstances, ODOT may elect to have emergency Warranty Repairs completed by other means and hold the failed parts for the Contractor's inspection, together with sufficient documentation to verify the repairs. The Contractor shall reimburse ODOT for all Warranty Costs incurred by ODOT in completing such emergency repairs. In the alternative, ODOT may rent substitute equipment from another source until Warranty Repairs can be completed, and obtain from Contractor reimbursement for all costs incurred. As used in this SECTION E.19.11.2, "costs" include substitute equipment, parts, labor, testing, transportation and shipping costs, insurance, travel, meals, accommodations, and all other expenses related to rental of substitute equipment.

E.20 FUNDS AVAILABLE AND AUTHORIZED; PAYMENTS: ODOT has sufficient funds available and authorized within its biennial appropriation or limitation to finance the purchase of Goods and Services, if any, under the Contract prior to the end of the current biennium. Contractor understands and agrees that ODOT's payment of amounts under the Contract attributable to purchases of Goods and Services made after the last day of the current biennium (2009-2011) is contingent on ODOT's receiving from the Oregon Legislative Assembly appropriations, limitations, or other expenditure authority sufficient to allow ODOT, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative discretion, to continue to make payments under the Contract.

E.21 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND STANDARDS:

E.21.1 SAFETY AND HEALTH REQUIREMENTS: Contractor warrants that Goods and services provided under the Contract comply with all applicable federal health and safety standards, including but not limited to, Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), and with all Oregon safety and health requirements, including, but not limited to, those of the State Workers' Compensation Division.

- **E.21.2 MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET:** Contractor shall provide ODOT with a Material Safety Data Sheet as defined by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) for any Goods provided under the Contract which may release or otherwise result in exposure to a hazardous chemical under normal conditions of use. In addition, Contractor must label, tag or mark such Goods.
- E.21.3 Contractor shall comply with all federal, State and local laws, regulations, executive orders and ordinances applicable to the Contract. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Contractor expressly agrees to comply with the following laws, regulations and executive orders to the extent they are applicable to the Contract: (i) Titles VI and VII of Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; (ii) Sections 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended; (iv) Executive Order 11246, as amended; (v) The Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended; (vi) The Vietnam Era Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended; (vii) ORS Chapter 659, as amended; (viii) all regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (ix) all other applicable requirements of federal and State civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations. All laws, regulations and executive orders applicable to the Contract are incorporated by reference where so required by law. ODOT's performance is conditioned upon Contractor's compliance with ORS 279B.220, 279B.230 and 279B.235, the terms of which are incorporated by reference into the Contract.
- <u>E.22 NONCOMPLIANT GOODS</u>: In the event of a conflict between the Specifications and applicable federal or State laws, the federal or State laws prevail. Provided, however, in the event of any conflict based solely upon minimum standards, such as quality or safety, the higher or more stringent standard apply.
 - <u>E.22.1</u> Contractor shall be responsible for making any modifications required to achieve compliance with the required laws and standards. Contractor shall notify ODOT of any such required modifications upon receipt of knowledge or notification of such, and shall complete all necessary modifications or provide substitute compliant Goods at no cost to ODOT within 14 calendar days of receipt of such notice. As used in this Section, "cost" includes substitute equipment, labor, transportation and shipping costs, insurance, travel, meals, accommodations, etc.
 - <u>E.22.1.1</u> In the event required modifications impair the utility of the Good for its intended purpose or level of function, in the reasonable opinion of ODOT, ODOT may elect to cancel any order and terminate the Contract in whole or in part, based on such non-compliance. Contractor shall refund any Contract payments that have been made with regard to the rejected Goods, and shall (at Contractor's sole cost and expense) remove the Goods within 14 calendar days of receiving notice of rejection or revocation of acceptance.

E.22.2 RECALLED GOODS:

- <u>E.22.2.1</u> In the event any Good, component, or accessory is recalled by a regulatory body or the manufacturer, Contractor shall immediately notify ODOT of the recall, and shall provide copies of the notice or other documentation ODOT may require. Contractor (at Contractor's sole cost and expense) shall complete all necessary modifications or provide substitute non-defective Goods and remove recalled Goods, wherever located, within 14 calendar days of receipt of such notice.
- <u>E.22.2.2</u> In the event required modifications impair the utility of a Good for its intended purpose or level of function in the reasonable opinion of ODOT, ODOT may elect to cancel any order or terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, at no cost or penalty to the State based on such recall. Contractor shall (at Contractor's sole cost and expense) promptly remove all recalled Goods,

Page 45

wherever located, and reimburse ODOT all amounts paid for recalled Goods, less the value of the use of such recalled Goods while in ODOT's possession.

As used in this Section, "cost" includes substitute equipment, labor, transportation and shipping costs, insurance, travel, meals, accommodations, etc.

<u>E.22.3</u> Nothing contained in this **SECTION E.22** precludes ODOT from other remedies to which it may be entitled upon rejection or revocation of acceptance

<u>E.23 SALES TO UNAUTHORIZED PURCHASERS</u>. This Price Agreement is intended for use by ODOT. It is the Contractor's responsibility to verify that the purchaser is a purchaser authorized by ODOT or an authorized representative of the Department of Administrative Services having the authority to contract pursuant to this Price Agreement. If Contractor is found to have entered into two or more contracts with an entity other than an authorized purchaser, pursuant to this Price Agreement, Contractor shall be deemed to be in material breach of this Price Agreement.

<u>E.24 FOREIGN CONTRACTOR</u>: If the amount of the Contract with ODOT exceeds \$10,000, and if Contractor is not domiciled in or registered to do business in the State of Oregon, Contractor shall promptly provide to the Oregon Department of Revenue all information required by that Department relative to the Contract. ODOT will be entitled to withhold final payment under the Contract until Contractor has met this requirement.

E.25 RESERVED

E.26 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE: Contractor agrees that time is of the essence for Contractor's performance obligations under the Contract.

E.27 FORCE MAJEURE: Neither ODOT nor Contractor shall be held responsible for delay or default caused by fire, riot, acts of God, war, or any other cause which is beyond the party's reasonable control. Contractor shall, however, make all reasonable efforts to remove or eliminate such a cause of delay or default and shall, upon the cessation of the cause, diligently pursue performance of its obligations under the Contract. ODOT may terminate the Contract upon written notice after reasonably determining that such delay or default likely prevents successful performance of the Contract.

E.28 EVENTS OF DEFAULT:

E.28.1 CONTRACTOR: Contractor shall be in default under the Contract if:

- E.28.1.1 Contractor breaches any Contract covenant, warranty, certification, or obligation; or
- **E.28.1.2** Contractor institutes an action for relief in bankruptcy or has instituted against it an action for insolvency; makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or ceases doing business on a regular basis of the type identified in Contractor's obligations under the Contract;
- E.28.1.3 Contractor attempts to assign rights in, or delegate duties under, the Contract.

E.28.2 ODOT: ODOT will be in default under the Contract if it breaches any Contract covenant, warranty, certification, or obligation.

E.29 TERMINATION:

E.29.1 MUTUAL CONSENT: The Contract may be terminated at any time by mutual written consent of the parties.

E.29.2 ODOT:

- <u>E.29.2.1</u> ODOT may, at its sole discretion, terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, for convenience.
- <u>E.29.2.2</u> ODOT will be excused from performance and may terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, immediately upon notice to Contractor, or at such later date as ODOT may establish in such notice, upon the occurrence of any of the following events:
 - (i) ODOT fails to receive funding, or appropriations, limitations or other expenditure authority at levels sufficient to allow ODOT, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative discretion, to pay for the Goods to be purchased under the Contract; or
 - (ii) federal or State laws, regulations, or guidelines are modified or interpreted in such a way that either the purchase of Goods and Services offered under the Contract is prohibited, or ODOT is prohibited from paying for such Goods and Services from the planned funding source; or
 - (iii) Contractor is in default of a material provision of the Contract. Pursuant to this SECTION **E.29.2.2**, upon receipt of written notice of termination, Contractor shall stop performance under the Contract as directed by ODOT.
- **E.29.3 CONTRACTOR:** Contractor may terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, immediately upon notice to ODOT, or at such later date as Contractor may establish in such notice, upon ODOT's default of a material provision of the Contract.

E.30 INDEMNIFICATION:

- <u>E.30.1</u> Contractor shall defend, save, hold harmless, and indemnify the State, ODOT, and its officers, employees and agents from and against all claims, suits, actions, proceedings, losses, damages, liabilities, and costs and expenses of any nature whatsoever (collectively, "Claims") resulting from, arising out of, or relating to the Contract, including but not limited to (i) the activities of Contractor or its officers, employees, subcontractors, or agents, (ii) the Goods delivered, and (iii) the Services provided pursuant to the Contract.
- **E.30.2** The Oregon Attorney General must give written authorization to any legal counsel purporting to act in the name of, or represent the interests of, the State and/or its officers, employees and agents prior to such action or representation. Further, the State, acting by and through its Department of Justice, may assume its own defense, including that of its officers, employees and agents, at any time when, in the State's sole discretion it determines that (i) proposed counsel is prohibited from the particular representation contemplated; (ii) counsel is not adequately defending the interests of the State, and/or its officers, employees and agents; (iii) important governmental interests are at stake; or (iv) the best interests of the State are served thereby. Contractor's obligation to pay for all costs and expenses include those incurred by the State in assuming its own defense and/or that of its officers, employees, or agents pursuant to (i) and (ii) above.

E.31 REMEDIES:

E.31.1 ODOT: In addition to the remedies afforded elsewhere herein, ODOT will be entitled to recover for any and all damages suffered as the result of Contractor's default, including but not limited to direct, indirect, incidental and consequential damages in accordance with ORS 72.7110 through 72.7170. ODOT will also be entitled to any equitable remedies to which it may show itself entitled.

E.31.2 CONTRACTOR: Subject to specific remedies afforded elsewhere herein, Contractor's remedy shall be restricted to recovery of actual damages incurred as a result of ODOT's default (Section E.28.2). In the event ODOT terminates the Contract for convenience, or in the event ODOT is in default (Section E.28.2), and whether or not Contractor elects to exercise its right to terminate the Contract, Contractor's sole remedy shall be (a) A claim against ODOT for the unpaid purchaser price for Goods delivered and accepted by ODOT (b) with respect to Services compensable on an hourly basis, a claim for unpaid invoices, hours worked but not yet billed and authorized expenses for services completed and accepted by ODOT (c) with respect to deliverable-based Services, a claim for the sum designated for completing the deliverable multiplied by the percentage of Services completed and accepted by ODOT, less previous amounts paid and any claim(s) which ODOT has against Contractor. If previous amounts paid to Contractor exceed the amount due to Contractor under this Section, Contractor shall pay any excess to ODOT upon written demand.

<u>E.31.3 ATTORNEY'S FEES</u>:, Neither party shall be entitled to recover attorney's fees, court and investigative costs, or any other fees or expenses associated with pursuing a remedy for damages arising out of or relating to the Contract.

<u>E.32 TRADE SECRETS</u>: Contractor shall label the information and documentation qualifying as trade secrets under ORS 192.501(2) that it wishes to protect from disclosure to third parties with the following: "This data constitutes a trade secret under ORS 192.501(2) and is not to be disclosed except as required by law." ODOT will take reasonable measures to hold in confidence all such labeled information and documentation. Provided, however, the State will not be liable for release of any information when required by law or court order to do so, whether pursuant to Oregon Public Records Law or otherwise. Further, the State will also be immune from liability for disclosure or release of information under the circumstances set out in ORS 646.473(3).

<u>E.33 NOTICES</u>: All notices required under the Contract must be in writing and addressed to the ODOT point of contact as identified in the ITB. All notices required to be given by the State must be in writing, addressed to the Contractor's representative, and sent to the address specified in the Bid. Mailed notices will be deemed given 5 days after post marked, when deposited, properly addressed and prepaid, into the U.S. postal service. Faxed notices will be deemed given upon electronic confirmation of successful transmission to the designated fax number, or the first State-recognized business day thereafter, if confirmation occurs outside normal business hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., excluding weekends and State-recognized holidays). Email notices will be deemed received upon electronic confirmation of message sent. Personal delivery will be effective upon delivery.

E.34 ACCESS TO RECORDS: Contractor shall maintain all fiscal records relating to the Contract in accordance with generally-accepted accounting principles, and shall maintain all other records relevant to Contractor's performance of the Contract (collectively, "Records"). ODOT and its duly authorized representatives will have access to Records for purposes of examination and copying. Contractor shall retain and keep accessible all Records for a minimum of 6 years, or such longer period as may be required by applicable law following expiration or termination of the Contract, or until the conclusion of any audit, controversy or litigation arising out of or related to the Contract, whichever date is later.

- **E.35 SEVERABILITY:** If any provision of the Contract is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or otherwise invalid, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Contract did not contain the particular provision held to be invalid.
- **E.36 SURVIVAL:** Termination of the Contract will not extinguish or prejudice ODOT's right to enforce the warranty, indemnification, access to records, governing law, venue, consent to jurisdiction, and remedies provisions.
- <u>E.37 ASSIGNMENT/SUBCONTRACT/SUCCESSORS</u>: Contractor shall not assign, sell, transfer, or subcontract rights, or delegate responsibilities under the Contract, in whole or in part, without ODOT's prior written approval. Further, such written approval will not relieve Contractor of any obligations under the Contract, and any assignee, transferee, or delegate shall be considered the agent of Contractor. The provisions of the Contract shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties to the Contract and their respective successors and permitted assigns.
- **E.38 GOVERNING LAW:** The Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Oregon, without regard to conflicts of law with regards to Goods. The UCC, as modified, if so, by the terms of the Contract, shall govern this transaction.
- E.39 VENUE; CONSENT TO JURISDICTION: Any claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, "Claim") between ODOT and Contractor that anses from or relates to the Contract shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively within the Circuit Court of Manion County for the State of Oregon. Provided, however, if a Claim must be brought in a federal forum, then unless otherwise prohibited by law it shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively within the United States District Court for the District of Oregon. CONTRACTOR, BY SUBMITTAL OF ITS SIGNED BID, HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE IN PERSONAM JURISDICTION OF SAID COURTS. Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of the State's sovereign or governmental immunity, whether derived from the Eleventh Amendment to the United States Constitution or otherwise, or of any defenses to Claims or jurisdiction based thereon.
- <u>E.40 MERGER CLAUSE; AMENDMENT; WAIVER:</u> The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between Contractor and ODOT on the subject matter thereof. There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified therein regarding the Contract. No waiver, consent, modification or change of terms of the Contract (collectively, "Amendment") shall bind either party unless in writing and signed by both parties, and all necessary approvals have been obtained. Amendments shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose given. The failure of ODOT to enforce any provision of the Contract will not constitute a waiver by ODOT of that or any other provision.
 - **E.40.1 VERBAL COMMUNICATIONS:** Verbal communications shall not be construed as or have the effect of signifying ODOT's waiver, or consent or agreement to amend, any Contract provision. All such changes must be in writing, signed by both parties and all necessary approvals obtained, including approval by the ODOT Fleet Operations Manager.
- **E.41 INSURANCE**: Contractor shall obtain the insurance required under **SECTION G** prior to performing any work under the Contract, and shall maintain all such insurance for the duration specified in that Section.

With regard to workers' compensation insurance, all employers, including Contractor, that employ subject workers who work under the Contract in the State of Oregon shall comply with ORS 656.017 and provide the required

Page 49

Workers' Compensation coverage, unless such employers are exempt under ORS 656.126. Contractor shall require and ensure that each of its subcontractors complies with these requirements.

E.42 AMENDMENT OF CONTRACT. Within the general scope of the Price Agreement, the parties may by amendment to Purchase Order modify any or all of the following and related payment obligations as necessary but not to exceed the price established in the Price Agreement. The expiration date of the Contract; time, place, quantity or form of delivery; and technical specifications or additional or substituted Goods, Services, or other work. No waiver, consent, modification or change of terms of a Contract binds a party unless in writing, signed by Contractor and ODOT, and approved as required by applicable laws and rules. Such waiver, consent, modification or change, if made, shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose given and shall not vary, amend, modify, or add Price Agreement provisions. By providing a substitution with consent of ODOT, Contractor represents that Contractor: has personally investigated the proposed substitute product; provides the same warranty for the substitution that the Contractor provides for the product originally specified; waives all claims for additional costs related to the substitution; and will make such changes as may be required by the substitution for the Goods to conform in all respects with the Price Agreement specifications and warranties.

<u>E.43 PURCHASE ORDERS: ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:</u> The parties acknowledge and agree that other than designation of order quantities, types of Goods, delivery destination, dates of order and scheduled delivery of other performance, any Purchase Orders or acknowledgement documents are simply for the convenience of the parties to initiate or confirm an order of Goods under this Contract and that no other terms or conditions contained in those documents shall be of any force or effect or be binding upon the parties.

SECTION F - SPECIAL PRICE AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

F.1. DISCLOSURE OF SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER: Contractor must provide Contractor's Social Security number unless Contractor provides a federal tax ID number. This number is requested pursuant to ORS 305.385 and OAR 150-305.100. Social Security numbers provided pursuant to this authority will be used for the administration of state, federal and local tax laws.

F.2 CONTRACTOR'S SOLE REMEDY: For its sole remedy, after exhausting any provisions for resale under Oregon's UCC (ORS Chapters 71 & 72), Contractor is limited to the difference between market price and Contract price at the time and place for tender, less expenses saved, without incidental damages. Contractor specifically disclaims and otherwise waives any right or privilege to recover consequential, exemplary, incidental, nominal, special, punitive or other statutory damages, and specifically shall not recover damages for lost opportunity or profits, or pursue any remedy in equity, by specific performance or otherwise.

F.3. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR; RESPONSIBILITY FOR TAXES AND WITHHOLDING:

<u>F.3.1</u> Contractor shall perform all required Work (for example, training) as an independent Contractor. Although ODOT reserves the right (i) to determine (and modify) the delivery schedule for the Work to be performed and (ii) to evaluate the quality of the completed performance, ODOT cannot and will not control the means or manner of Contractor's performance. Contractor is responsible for determining the appropriate means and manner of performing the Work.

<u>F.3.2</u> If Contractor is currently performing work for the State of Oregon or the federal government, Contractor by signature to this Contract declares and certifies that: Contractor's Work to be performed under this Contract creates no potential or actual conflict of interest as defined by ORS Chapter 244 and no rules or regulations of Contractor's employing agency (state or federal) would prohibit Contractor's Work under this Contract. Contractor is not an "officer", "employee", or "agent" of ODOT, as those terms are used in ORS 30.265. Contractor shall be responsible for all federal or state taxes applicable to compensation or payments paid to Contractor under this Contract and, unless Contractor is subject to backup withholding, ODOT will not withhold from such compensation or payments any amount(s) to cover Contractor's federal or state tax obligations. Contractor is not eligible for any social security, unemployment insurance or workers' compensation benefits from compensation or payments paid to Contractor under this Contract, except as a self-employed individual.

SECTION G - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Bidder shall indicate below the method that will be used to deliver goods:
COMMERCIAL/COMMON CARRIER OTHER
If Bidder is using anything other than commercial/common carriers to deliver Goods, an insurance certificate of Automobile Liability as listed below must be provided prior to the issuance of a Notice to Proceed.
The following are the minimum insurance requirements for this Price Agreement:
G.1 Required by Agency of Contractors with one or more workers, as defined by ORS 656.027. All employers, including Contractor, that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, shall compare with ORS 656.017 and shall provide Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage for those workers, unlet they meet the requirement for an exemption under ORS 656.126(2). Contractor shall include the requirements in each of its subcontractor contracts.
G.2 Required by Agency Not required by Agency. (May substitute Garage Liability) Commercial General Liability insurance with a per occurrence limit, or the equivalent, of not less than \$200,000, \$500,000, \$1,000,000, or \$2,000,000 covering "bodily injury" and "property damage Any annual aggregate limits shall not be less than \$100,000, \$500,000, \$1,000,000, or \$2,000,000. This insurance shall include personal and advertising injury liability coverage, as well as coverage products and completed operations. This coverage may be written in combination with the Automobile Liabil insurance required under this Price Agreement (with separate limits).
G.3 Required by Agency Not required by Agency. Automobile Liability insurance covering Contractor's business-related automobile use, with a combined sing limit, or the equivalent, of not less than Oregon Financial Responsibility Law (ORS 806.060), \$200,00 \$500,000, or \$1,000,000, each accident for "bodily injury" and "property damage," including coverage all owned, non-owned, rented or hired vehicles. This coverage may be purchased by Contractor from a rencompany, as appropriate, or written in combination with the Commercial General Liability insurance require under this Price Agreement (with separate limits).
G.4 Notice of cancellation or change. There shall be no cancellation, material change (one that would adverse impact the protection of Agericy provided through the insurance coverages required in this Price Agreement reduction of limits or intent not to renew the insurance coverage(s) without 30 calendar days prior written not from Contractor or its insurer(s) to the Department of Transportation (Agency).
G.5 Certificates of Insurance. As evidence of the insurance coverages required by this Price Agreement Contractor shall furnish acceptable insurance certificates to Department of Transportation (Agency) prior to Price Agreement execution. Throughout the life of this Price Agreement, Contractor shall submit updated certificates insurance prior to the policy expiration date(s) indicated for the required coverages. If Agency has on file curred certificates of insurance that meet all requirements of this Price Agreement, and Agency provides surnotification to Contractor, then submittal of certificates pursuant to this Price Agreement will not be required. i) Blanket Coverage. Unless otherwise approved by Agency, the certificate submitted for this Contract munitary reference a specific Price Agreement name or number with regard to any of the required liabilic coverages or Additional Insured Endorsement (contact the Agency's Procurement Specialist if this is navailable from the insurance provider).

Page 52

- ii) Additional Insureds. The certificate must specify "The State of Oregon, the Oregon Transportation Commission and its members, and the Department of Transportation, its officers, agents and employees" as Additional Insureds for Automobile and General Liability. The certificate must be submitted with the blanket Additional Insureds Endorsement page(s).
- State Acceptance. All insurance providers are subject to State acceptance. If requested by Agency, Contractor shall either: a) provide complete copies of insurance policies, endorsements, self-insurance documents and related insurance documents to Agency; or, b) make such insurance policies, endorsements, self-insurance documents and related insurance documents available for inspection by Agency's representatives at a location in the State of Oregon that is reasonably convenient for Agency's representatives responsible for verification of the insurance coverages required under this Price Agreement. In the event Contractor elects to have Agency representatives inspect the insurance policies, endorsements, self-insurance documents and related insurance documents, Agency representative shall be entitled to make written notes regarding the documents inspected, for the purpose of verifying the coverages required under this Price Agreement.
- Financial Responsibility. Contractor shall be financially responsible for all pertinent deductibles, self-insured retentions and self-insurance.

G.6	Required by Agency Not required by Agency. Tail Coverage. If any of the required liability insurance is arranged on a "claims made" basis, "tail" coverage shall be required at the completion of the Price Agreement for a duration of: 24 months, or 12 months. If "tail" coverage is required by Agency, Contractor will be responsible for furnishing certification of "tail" coverage as described, or continuous "claims made" liability coverage, for the time period required in this Contract following Price Agreement expiration. Continuous "claims made" coverage will be acceptable in lieu of "tail" coverage, provided its retroactive date is on or before the effective date of the Contract. Evidence of suitable coverage will be a condition of final payment under the Price Agreement.
G.7	Required by Agency Not required by Agency. Garagekeepers' Legal Liability Coverage: Contractor shall obtain, at Contractor's expense and keep in effect during the term of this Contract and any applicable warranty periods, Garagekeepers' Legal Liability Coverage for "Autos left for service, repair, storage or safekeeping." The deductible for this coverage will be determined prior to Price Agreement award. Coverage limits per occurrence must not be less than \$

SECTION H - BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS & RESPONSIBILITY INQUIRY

ODOT reserves the right, pursuant to OAR 137-047-0640(1)(c)(F), to investigate and evaluate, at any time prior to award and execution of the Contract, the apparent successful Bidder's responsibility to perform the Contract. Submission of a signed offer constitutes approval for ODOT to obtain any information ODOT deems necessary to conduct the evaluation. ODOT will notify the apparent successful Bidder, in writing, of any other documentation required, which may include, but is not limited to, recent profit-and-loss history; current balance statements: assets-to- liabilities ratio, including number and amount of secured versus unsecured creditor claims; availability of short and long-term financing; bonding capacity; credit information; material; equipment; facility and personnel information; performance record of Contract performance; etc. Failure to promptly provide this information will result in offer rejection.

ODOT may postpone the award of the Contract after announcement of the apparent successful Bidder in order to complete its investigation and evaluation Failure of the apparent successful Ridder to demonstrate

Responsibility, as required under OAR 137-047-0640(1)(c)(F), will render the Bidder non-responsible and will constitute grounds for offer rejection, as required under OAR 137-047-0640.
H.1 NUMBER OF YEARS IN BUSINESS OF SELLING EQUIPMENT OF THE KIND MADE THE SUBJECT OF THIS ITB:
H.2 NUMBER OF PENDING CONTRACTS FOR SALE OF EQUIPMENT AND ASSOCIATED SERVICES EQUIVALENT IN VOLUME AND VALUE TO THOSE REQUIRED UNDER THIS ITB:
H.3 NUMBER OF FACTORY-AUTHORIZED SERVICE REPRESENTATIVES IN THE STATE AVAILABLE TO PROVIDE WARRANTY SERVICES UNDER THE CONTRACT TO BE AWARDED:
<u>H.4</u> LOCATIONS OF REPRESENTATIVES IDENTIFIED IN H.3, INCLUDING CONTACT NAMES, COMPANY NAMES, PHYSICAL ADDRESSES, PHONE NUMBERS, FAX NUMBERS AND HOURS OF SERVICE (Refer to B.21.3):
(USE SEPARATE SHEET) DONE
<u>H.5</u> WITHIN THE PAST FIVE YEARS, HAS BIDDER HAD ANY LAWSUITS FILED AGAINST IT INVOLVING CONTRACT DISPUTES? YES / NO. IF "YES," INDICATE DATES AND ULTIMATE RESOLUTION OF SUIT. (WITH REGARD TO JUDGMENTS, INCLUDE JURISDICTION AND DATE OF FINAL JUDGMENT OR DISMISSAL.).
No
(USE SEPARATE SHEET IF ADDITIONAL SPACE IS NEEDED)

<u>H.6</u> WITHIN THE PAST TWENTY-FOUR MONTHS, HAS BIDDER FILED A BANKRUPTCY ACTION, FILED FOR REORGANIZATION, MADE A GENERAL ASSIGNMENT OF ASSETS FOR THE BENEFIT OF CREDITORS, OR HAD AN ACTION FOR INSOLVENCY INSTITUTED AGAINST IT? YES / NO. IF "YES," SUPPLY FILING DATES, JURISDICTIONS, TYPE OF ACTION, ULTIMATE RESOLUTION, AND DATES OF JUDGMENT OR DISMISSAL, IF APPLICABLE.

No	
(USE SEPARATE SHEET IF ADDITIONAL SPACE IS NEEDED)	
<u>H.7</u> WITHIN THE PAST TWENTY-FOUR MONTHS, HAS BIDDER HAD ANY LAWSUITS FILED AGAINST CREDITORS? YES / NO. IF "YES," INDICATE DATES AND ULTIMATE RESOLUTION OF SUIT (REGARD TO JUDGMENTS, INCLUDE JURISDICTION AND DATE OF FINAL JUDGMENT OR DISMISSAL	WITH

NOTE: A Bidder Qualifications and Reference form is provided within this Invitation to Bid. Bidders must complete this form and return it with their bid.

- **H.8 BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS & REFERENCES:** Bid responses will be accepted only from bidders who provide the following:
 - <u>H.8.1</u> Three (3) current end user references (must not include reseller, dealers, or vendors) that the Bidder has Contracted with to provide a similar level of service and support, as referenced in this Invitation to Bid, within the last 2 years. At least 1 of the professional references must be a county agency, city agency or state agency other than ODOT.
 - <u>H.8.2</u> ODOT reserves the right to check the references to determine if they are supportive of the Contractors ability to comply with the requirements of the Invitation to Bid.
 - H.8.3 Failure to provide complete and accurate information may be cause for bid rejection.
 - <u>H.8.3.1</u> Bidder must provide customer references that can be contacted regarding the quality of workmanship and service provided to current and past customers.
 - <u>H.8.3.2</u> Each reference must be under separate Contracts [for example, it is not acceptable to have 3 State of Oregon government agencies which use the same Contract to count as 3 separate references].
 - <u>H.8.3.3</u> ODOT reserves the right to investigate any customer references whether or not furnished by the Bidder and past performance of any Bidder in respect to its successful performance of similar projects, compliance with specifications and Contractual obligations, its completion or delivery of a product or service on schedule, and its lawful payment of suppliers, subcontractors, and employees.

No

<u>H.8.3.4</u> ODOT may reject a bid if, in the opinion of ODOT, overall reference responses indicate inadequate performance.

<u>H.8.3.5</u> ODOT may postpone the award or execution of the Contract after the announcement of the apparent successful bidder in order to complete its investigation. ODOT reserves its right to reject any bid response or to reject all bid responses at any time prior to ODOT's execution of a Contract.

BID	DER QUALIFICATIONS AI	ND REFERENCE FORM
1. B	IDDER INFORMATION:	
a.	Business Name:	Pape Machinery
b.	Business Address:	P.O. Box 407 Eygene OR 97440
C.	Owner Name:	Sine Pade
d.	Business Phone	
u.	Daytime:	741-69.2-2017
e.	Number of Employees:	800 + Annual Sales \$: 300,000 +
f.	Date Business Established:	1952
2, I	REFERENCES:	
a.	Firm Name:	North Carolina DOT
	Address:	191 Robbinsville Rt Andrew, NC 24901
	Name of Contact Person:	Damon
	Position Title:	Drectu
	Telephone Number:	828-197-1890 Fax Number:
	Name of Project:	N/A
,	Address:	<u>~\\</u> A
	Dates:	r/A
	Make / Model provided	Sikai SWGS
b.	Firm Name:	Roston Daving Co
	Address:	6216 Thompson Rd Syracise, NY 13206
	Name of Contact Person:	Don agril
	Position Title:	UP at Purchassing
	Telephone Number:	571-292-8201 Fax Number: N/A
	Name of Project:	4(۸
	Address:	<u> </u>
	Dates:	4/4
	Make / Model provided	Sahai SW800
C.	Firm Name:	Shelly Contracting
	Address:	80 Burh Drive Thornville, OH 43076
	Name of Contact Person:	Jett Freeman
	Position Title:	Operations Myr.
	Telephone Number:	710 - 216 - 1175 Fax Number: N/A
	Name of Project:	N/A
	Address:	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
		CA DEED
	Dates: Make / Model provided	N/A S1.) 800

Page 57

EACH BIDDER MUST READ AND COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS! THROUGH O. FAILURE TO DO SO MAY RESULT IN BID REJECTION.

SECTION I - RESIDENCY INFORMATION

ORS 279A.120(2)(b) states that in determining the lowest responsible Bidder, a Contracting agency shall, for the purpose of awarding the Contract, add a percent increase to the bid of a nonresident Bidder equal to the percent, if any, of the preference given to that Bidder in the state in which the Bidder resides.

"Resident bidder" means a bidder that has paid unemployment taxes or income taxes in this state during the twelve calendar months immediately preceding submission of the bid/proposal, has a business address in this state and has stated in the bid/proposal whether the bidder is a "resident bidder".[ORS 279A.120(1)(b)]

Non-resident bidder" means a bidder who is not a "resident bidder" as defined above. [ORS 279A.120(1)(a)]
a. Check one: Bidder is a (resident bidder () non-resident bidder.
b. If a resident bidder, enter your Oregon business address (physical and mailing address): 33693 McFarland Road
33693 McFarland Road Tangent, 012 97389
c. If a non-resident bidder, enter state of residency: N/A
d. If a non-resident bidder, do you or your firm receive, or are you or your firm eligible for, any preference in award of Contracts with your state's government or with other governmental bodies in your state?
Check one: () Yes () No N/A
If yes: state the preference percentage:
If yes, but not a percentage of bid/proposal price, describe the preference:
If yes, state the law or regulation that allows the preference described (legal citation):
SECTION I CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH ORECON TAY LAWIS

<u>SECTION J - CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH OREGON TAX LAWS</u>

By my signature in **SECTION O** of this ITB, I, hereby attest or affirm under penalty of perjury: That I am authorized to act on behalf of the Contractor in this matter, that I have authority and knowledge regarding the payment of taxes, and that Contractor is, to the best of my knowledge, not in violation of any Oregon Tax Laws.

For purposes of this certification, "Oregon Tax Laws" means a state tax imposed by ORS 401.792 to 401.816, ORS Chapters 118, 314, 316, 317, 318, 320, 321, 323 and the elderly rental assistance program under ORS 310.630 to 310.706, and any local taxes administered by the Department of Revenue under ORS 305.620.

BID NO: 24350

Page 58

SECTION K - CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH NONDISCRIMINATION LAWS

By my signature in **SECTION O** of this ITB, I, hereby attest or affirm under penalty of perjury that I am authorized to act on behalf of Bidder in this matter, and to the best of my knowledge the Bidder has not discriminated against minority, women or emerging small business enterprises in obtaining any required subcontracts, and that the Bidder is not in violation of any Discrimination Laws.

SECTION L - RECYCLED PRODUCTS CERTIFICATION

Vendors shall use recyclable products to the maximum extent economically feasible in the performance of the Contract work set forth in this document. If recycled products are used, submit percentage used and type of recycled product with bid submission. Bidders are required to submit this information, if applicable. See Section B.12.5 RECYCLED MATERIAL.

SECTION M - OFFICE OF MINORITY, WOMEN OWNED, AND EMERGING SMALL BUSINESS (OMWESB) CERTIFICATION

Bidders that are certified by the Oregon Office of Minority, Women Owned, and Emerging Small Business, shall provide their Certification Number. Bidders are required to submit this information if applicable.

Aspirational Target assigned to this Contract: N/A% DBE Participation Goal assigned for this Contract: N/A%

SECTION N - ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

N.1 ODOT reserves the right to make changes to the Invitation to Bid and the resulting Contract, by written Addenda, prior to the closing time and date. Addenda will be advertised on the ORPIN System. ODOT is not responsible for a Bidders failure to receive notice of Addenda if such are advertised in the foregoing manner. Addendums will only be issued by ODOT and upon issuance are incorporated into the Invitation to Bid or the resulting Contract. If required by the Addenda, Bidders shall sign and return the Addenda prior to the Closing time/date.

N.2 By Bidders signature in Section O it ACKNOWLEDGES, AGREES and CERTIFIES TO THE FOLLOWING:

N.2.1 If any Addendums are issued in connection with this ITB, Bidder has received and duly considered such Addendums, and has completed the blanks below identifying all Addendums issued, and acknowledging and agreeing to the terms of all such Addendums as those terms revise the terms, conditions, Plans and Specifications of this ITB.

conditions, Plans and Sp	pecifications of this ITB.	
AMENDMENT(s):	Noto No inclusive.	

SECTION O - SIGNATURE OF BIDDER'S DULY AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

THIS BID MUST BE SIGNED IN INK BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE BIDDER; ANY ALTERATIONS OR ERASURES TO THE BID MUST BE INDIVIDUALLY INITIALED IN INK BY THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE.

The undersigned acknowledges, attests and certifies individually and on behalf of the Bidder that:

- (1) He/she is a duly authorized representative of the Bidder, has been authorized by Bidder to make all representations, attestations, and certifications contained in this Bid and all Addenda, if any, issued, and to execute this Bid on behalf of Bidder;
- (2) Bidder, acting through its authorized representatives, has read and understands all Bid instructions, Specifications, and terms and conditions contained in this Bid document (including all listed attachments and Addenda, if any, issued);
- (3) Bidder certifies that this Bid has been arrived at independently and has been submitted without any collusion designed to limit independent bidding or competition;
- (4) Bidder is bound by and shall comply with all requirements, Specifications, and terms and conditions contained in this Bid document (including all listed attachments and Addenda, if any, issued);
- (5) Bidder shall furnish the designated Goods in accordance with the Bid Specifications and requirements, and shall comply in all respects with the terms of the resulting Contract upon award; and
- (6) BIDDER SHALL PROVIDE/FURNISH FEDERAL EMPLOYEE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER OR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER WITH BID SUBMISSION.
- (7) BIDDER'S CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR: Identify the name of the individual who shall function as Bidder's authorized representative and Contract Administrator in the event Bidder is awarded the Contract. The Contract Administrator shall act for and bind the Contractor in all things relating to performance of the Contract. Include the address, e-mail, fax and telephone numbers to be used in providing any notices required or authorized under the Contract, and in contacting the Contract Administrator.
- (8) All affirmations contained in Section B.3.1 are true and correct.

(9) All Contractors, subcontractors or oth	er Associates are in compliand	ce with all COI disclosure requirements per Section
Bidder (COMPANY) Name		73-1627810
Bidder (COMPANY) Name		FEIN
33693 McFarland	Rd. Tanger	1,02 97389
Bidder Address Sett W.	Panter	
Contract Administrator		
A. N. H		2/2/11
Signature of Authorized Representative		Date
503-385-570b	541-812-0139	spantera) papemachinery.com
Phone	Fax	Email
SE	ECTION P - PRICE AGE	

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY THE STATE OF OREGON

The State of Oregon hereby awards a Price Agreement to the above Bidder for the Good(s) designated in Section D of the ITB (circle awarded categories):

Category 1 Rollers	Category 4 Rollers	
Category 2 Rollers	Category 5 Rollers	
Category 3 Rollers	Category 6 Rollers	
Yau a Fred Production of the P	Curement + Contract Spec.	2 4 1 Date
	Pcs 3	2-14-11
Authorized Signature	Title	Date
Kathe Lincoln is	rà ement	14/11
Legal Sufficiency Approval (if require	ed)	Date
Price Agreement No. 29014	2012	
Not to Exceed Expiration	Date: 2113/2017	

EXHIBIT A: SAMPLE PURCHASE ORDER (PO)

SHP TO (NAME, STREET AD	DRESS, CITY, STATE, ŽIPJ:		NAME PHONE FAX:	AGENCY (CONTACT		POISS	UE DATE	tice ju	rindreir II	MEER VIII PO ROYAL ETHING	back mus
Serve as empto	50.57F		AGENCY NUMB	er 📆	ķē.		BENNS	un 🚟	CONFER	ACITAL	NO.	1.5
JENDOR NUMBER-\$5X	PAYMENT TERMS Hot 30 days	FOS Destination	DELIVERY DAT	E REQUA	<u>.</u>		PRICE	AGREEMENT	NO. SACKOR	D5R N	o. 🤲	Œ.
CONTRACTOR/VENDOR NA	ME AND ADDRESS	NAME PHON FAX:		CONTAC	Invoic charge the re State	e must ca es uniess ceipted fre	ny this p stated or sight bill ect to fe	tisewise. If fi must accomp deral excise	er number. Pre eight is billed a sarry the invoice	SASE	freigh parate	iten,
DEECRIPTION A	ALOR CATALOG NUMBER	UNIT	EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT EVELOR	ACT	DETAL	Ordered	Unit	Received	UNITPRICE	TEM	IOTAL.	ero
							®			S	0.00	8
25100			沙尼汉 第4000年		100 mm	STATE OF THE	500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500			S	0.00	100
						1000				Ş	0.00	F.
			To the same of the		阿里		188	302		\$	0.00	\$P
				記を変数						\$	0.00	16.00 11.00
		1782年4月 2017年	There is a	angung.	遊遊遊	E STATE OF THE STA	are Orf		11 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	S	0.00	624. (54)
		200	慶 慶							S	0.00	27.5 27.5
				2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 200	2000年		(000 (400)		77.00	\$	0.00	100 187
				22		STEW .		SERENT.	as at a	s	0.00	5.5 2.5
									TOTAL	\$	0.00	
LEGULESTED BY	DATE	APPROVED BY	- PRINT NAME		DATE	RECEM	50 8Y-1	PRINT RAME		DAT	e Mas	,
POS over \$5,000 only)	APPROVED BY						GNATURE				
This Purchase Order and to b) I the terms and co bout the Goods/Service	nditions of the parent	Price Agreeme	at between Agency	and Co	ntractor, co	ostitute	the ent	ire sereem	eat between	the p	e, or arties	

EXHIBIT B: PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS

The Agency may conduct performance evaluations on the Contractor during the Price Agreement term, be compiled and maintained by Agency, and become a written record of Contractor's performance, including information gained during the exit interview. The Agency will provide copies of any performance evaluation to the affected Contractor and third parties, unless lawfully exempt.

The following information describes the Agency's use of the performance evaluation documentation:

Performance Evaluation Process:

- a. Agency's Right to Evaluate. Agency may, at its sole discretion, conduct performance evaluations. The Agency reserves the right to negotiate the criterion of the Performance Evaluation Form prior to execution of the Price Agreement.
- **b.** Evaluation Process. The performance evaluation results may be used as written documentation for addressing areas of Contractor's performance throughout the term of the resulting Price Agreement. Agency reserves the right to conduct performance evaluations on an interim basis throughout the term of the Price Agreement.
- c. Contractor's Review/Response. The Agency will provide a copy of the performance evaluation form results to Contractor within 10 business days following completion. Contractor may respond, in writing, and request a meeting to address any or all findings contained in the completed Contractor's performance evaluation form within 5 business days following receipt.
- d. Agency's Use of Performance Evaluation. Agency may, at its sole discretion, use performance evaluation findings and conclusions in any way deemed necessary by Agency, including, but not limited to, as a criterion of selection for future Agency contracts.

BID NO: 24350

Page 63

SAMPLE CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION FORM

	CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Į.	[] Final or [] Interim – Period Report: From / / To / /
1. Contractor	Name Address:
2. Price Agreemen Number:	
Purchase Order	4. Award Date:
Number:	Expiration Date:
5. Type of Price Ag	reement: Rollers
	commenting, score (in column on the left) using 1 for unsatisfactory, 2 for marginal, 3 for or very good, and 5 for exceptional.
Quality of	Comments
Workmanship	
Timeliness	Comments
Dialor and	Comments
Pickup and Delivery	Comments
Customer Service	Comments
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Total Score	(sum of scores from each area)
Mean Score	(sum of scores divided by number of areas evaluated):
7. List Key Pers	onnel of Contractor
Name/Title	Employment Dates
Comments:	

BID NO: 24350

Page 64

Name/Title		Employment	Employment Dates			
Comments:	_					
Name/Title Employment Dates			Dates			
Comments:		·				
8. Would you select the Contractor again? Yes No No No No						
9. Evaluator Name/Org. ID Signature:				Phone/Fax Number:		
Date Sent to Contractor:				Evaluator's Initials:		
Contractor's Review. Were comments, rebuttals, or additional information provided? [] No []Yes. Please attach comments.						
11. Returned by (print name):				Signature		
Phone				Date		
Fax Internet Address						
Agency Review. Were contractor comments reviewed at a level above the Contract Administrator? No []Yes. Please attach comments. Number of pages						
13. Final Ratings. Re-a Validate or revise as app		k 6 ratings based o	on cont	ractor comme	ents and agency review.	
Quality	Timeliness Pickup an		d Delivery	Customer Service		
Mean Score (Add the ratings above and divide by the number of areas rated)				0.00		
14. CA's Name				Signature		
Phone				Date		
Fax						
Internet Address						

Page 65

Release of Information: This Contractor Performance Report may be used to support future award decisions, and will be treated as source selection information in accordance with FAR 3.104-4(k)(1)(x) and 42.1503(b). The completed report shall not be released to other than Government personnel and the contractor whose performance is being evaluated during the period the information is being used to provide source selection information.

BID NO: 24350

Page 66

SAMPLE CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE REPORT INSTRUCTIONS

- Block 1: Contractor Name and Address.
- Block 2: Price Agreement number / Purchase Order number being evaluated.
- Block 3: Cumulative Price Agreement value to date.
- Block 4: Price Agreement award date and Price Agreement expiration date.
- Block 5: Type of Price Agreement: Check all that apply.
- Block 6: Indicate rating in far left column under section topic. In the comment area, provide rationale for the rating. Indicate the Price Agreement requirements that were exceeded or were not met by the contractor and by how much.
- Block 7: Identify contractor key personnel.
- Block 8: Explain why you would or would not select the contractor for this Price Agreement again.
- Block 9: Provide information indicated.
- Blocks 10-11: The contractor may provide comments but must sign block 13 to indicate it has reviewed the rating.
- Block 12: If the contractor and Contract Administrator are unable to agree on a final rating, the contractor may seek review at a level above the Contract Administrator, as required. Provide information indicated.
- Block 13: Adjust the ratings assigned in block 6, if appropriate, based on any comments, rebuttals, or additional information provided by the contractor and, if necessary, by agency review. Calculate a mean score.
- Block 14: The Contract Administrator's signature indicates concurrence with the initial and final ratings.

ATTACHMENT A - REVERSE AUCTION SUBMITTAL FORM

To participate in the Reverse Auction Bidding, Bidder must contact the Buyer listed on Page 1. Buyer will email a fillable .pdf form to the Bidder, along with instructions for submittal.

January 20, 2011

OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

INVITATION TO BID ADDENDUM NO. 1

BID NO .:

24350

FINAL CLOSE DATE: February 3, 2011

TIME:

2:00 PM

DESCRIPTION:

Rollers

BUYER:

Kari Frey

PHONE:

503-986-2653

FAX:

503-986-2717

This addendum forms a part of the contract documents and modifies, as noted below, the original bidding documents dated January 4, 2011, and becomes a part of the contract documents.

*Acknowledge receipt of this addendum in the space provided on the bottom of this page and return with bidding documents. Failure to do so may be subject to disqualification.

DESCRIPTION OF BID CHANGES

Delete in their entirety and replace these Sections as follows:

- A.3 REVERSE AUCTION METHOD OF BIDDING: Bidders shall compete for the award of the Contract by offering successively lower prices for each Roller Category. ODOT will post lowest pricing per category periodically throughout the solicitation period. By submission of a Reverse Auction Bid, Bidder acknowledges conformance to specifications as outlined in this solicitation, and retains all obligations of the offer.
- <u>A.3.4</u> Identity of the Bidders will not be disclosed until the final Bid closing date and time. Only the successively lower price per category will be revealed to the participants and will be carried over into the next bid auction cycle.
- A.3.5 FINAL BID SUBMISSION: Upon final Bid Closing Date and Time, Bidder shall submit an entire bid packet to include those items outlined in Section B.4. Last and final bid pricing offered (including optional items) must be included in Section D. Bidder is not required to participate in all Reverse Auction bid closing dates as outlined in Schedule of Events on Page 2, but in order to be considered for Price Agreement Award, must submit a completed bid packet prior to Final Bid Closing Date.
- C.4.0 Category 4 Low profile tandem drum articulated vibratory compactor with hydrostatic drive and operating weight of between five and eight and one half (5 and 8.5) tons.
- <u>C.4.1.5</u> The filters provided must include at a minimum; fuel filter with water separator, engine, hydraulic and hydrostatic systems. Air cleaner, dual element type, with a Turbo II or equal pre-cleaner, with a restriction gauge or light. See additional filter requirements in Section 3.7 FILTERS.
- <u>C.4.1.7</u> The drive system must be on both drums of tandem compactors. Drums must be smooth finish, have a chamfered edge and have a minimum oscillation of +/-7°. All drums must be equipped with filtered water spray system and cocoa mats. A timed water system that maintains water on drums may be substituted on units where cocoa mats are unavailable.
- <u>C.4.1.18</u> All drum compactors in Category 1,2 & 3 must be capable of static and single frequency vibratory mode of operation. Category 4 & 5 must be capable of static, and dual or variable frequency in

vibratory mode of operation. All categories must be equipped with automatic vibration stop when in neutral.

- C.4.2.3 Must have a minimum fuel capacity of 13 gallons.
- C.4.2.4 Engine must develop a minimum of 35 net SAE J1349 horsepower.
- C.4.4.1 The front and rear drums must be between 50 and 54.5 inches in width.
- C.4.4.3 Must have a minimum fuel capacity of 13 gallons.
- C.4.4.4 Engine must develop a minimum of 31 net SAE J1349 horsepower.
- C.4.5.3 Must have a minimum fuel capacity of 32 gallons.
- <u>C.4.5.4</u> Engine must develop a minimum of 74 net SAE J1349 horsepower.
- C.4.6.4 Engine must develop a minimum of 99 net SAE J1349 horsepower.
- C.4.6.6 Overall length must not exceed 221 inches.
- C.4.7.2 Tires must be 7.50 x 15 inch, 12 ply minimum, with smooth tread.
- C.4.7.3 Must have a top speed of at least 12 miles per hour in either direction.
- <u>C.4.7.10</u> Ballast compartments must total 120 cubic feet, at a minimum, or use solid removable ballast weights to meet the requirements described in C.4.0 Category 6.

*I hereby acknowledge having received and duly considered the preceding addendum to the specification.

Authorized Signature: 10. 11.



Pape Machinery Stores Authorized Representatives Info

Portland

1425 NE Columbia Blvd Portland, OR 97211 (503)289-1103 Office (503)283-4549 Fax Contact - Jim Smith M-F 7am-5pm (After Hours Service Also)

Tangent

33693 McFarland Rd Tangent, OR 97389 (541)812-0207 Office (541)812-0139 Fax Contact - Aaron Potter M-F 7am-5pm (After Hours Service Also)

Eugene

460 N. Danebo Ave Suite 100 Eugene, OR 97402 (541)484-5424 Office (541)463-2929 Fax Contact – Jeff Rusow M-F 7am-5pm (After Hours Service Also)

Bend

20434 NE Cady Way Bend, OR 97701 (541)389-5869 Office (541)389-5081 Fax Contact – Jim Sherman M-F 7am-5pm (After Hours Service Also)

Klamath Falls

9135 Hwy 97 Klamath Falls, OR 97603 (541)884-5683 Office (541)884-5684 Fax Contact - Bob Head M-F 7am-5pm (After Hours Service Also)

Central Point

4300 Hadley Dr Central Point, OR 97502 (541)772-4706 Office (541)776-3818 Fax Contact - Dean Vargas M-F 7am-5pm (After Hours Service Also)









Roseburg

1699 Greensiding Road Roseburg, OR 97470 (541)679-2928 Office (541)679-2955 Fax Contact - Gordon Boyd M-F 7am-5pm (After Hours Service Also)

Coos Bay

1625 North 7th Avenue Coos Bay, OR 97420 (541)267-2732 Office (541)264-3423 Fax Contact - Hank Mast M-F 7am-5pm (After Hours Service Also)









SAKAI AMERICA, INC.

90 International Parkway • Adairsville, GA 30103

January 28, 2011

To Whom It May Concern:

Subject: Machine Post Consumer Waste

Once a Sakai machine has reached the end of its useful life, virtually 100% of it can be recycled provided adequate and proper facilities are available. Theoretically, the following materials can be recycled:

Oils and lubricants Coolant Metals (Iron, steel, copper and aluminum) Glass

Rubber Plastics

All paints used at the Adairsville, Georgia plant are lead-free and do not require any special remediation prior to recycling machines and machine components.

Best regards.

Denver Weinstiger

Product Support Manager



SAKAI AMERICA, INC.

90 International Parkway • Adairsville, GA 30103

January 28, 2011

To Whom It May Concern:

Subject: Manufacturing Process Recycling

Sakai America, Inc. obtains parts and components from various suppliers for the purpose of manufacturing Sakai rollers in the Adairsville, Georgia plant. For the most part, the items are received in containers that are either returned for future use or re-used at the plant for storage or shipping purposes. 100% of containers that are metal or wood and are not returned or re-used, are recycled.

All residual lubricants generated through the manufacturing process are disposed of through local recycling specialty companies.

Best regards,

Denver Weinstiger

Product Support Manager



Pape Machinery uses 100% recycled paper in all bid submittals. That includes this ROLLER BID, ITB #730-24350-11.

Scott Panter

Territory Manager (503)385-5706 cell



